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1. DEPARTMENT GENERAL INFORMATION  
!

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:     Garona Building 

                                           3rd Floor  

    MMABATHO 

                                            

POSTAL ADDRESS:   Private Bag X 129 

                                    MMABATHO 

                                    27355 

 

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:   018 388 3040 

FAX NUMBER:   018 388 1548 

EMAIL ADDRESS:    dmichael@nwpg.gov.za 

WEBSITE ADDRESS   :  www.nwpg.gov.za   

&

&

&

&

&
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS 
 

ACT     Agriculture, Culture and Tourism    

AFS     Annual Financial Statement 

APP     Annual Performance Plan 

AGSA     Auditor General of South Africa 

AO     Accounting Officer 

AV     Anti-Virus 

BBBEE    Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

BCP      Business Continuity Plan 

CD     Chief Director 

CDW     Community Development Worker 

CHW     Community Health Worker 

CFO     Chief Financial Officer 

DG     Director General 

DDG     Deputy Director General 

Dept.     Department 

DPSA     Department of Public Service and Administration 

DR     Disaster Recovery  

EU     European Union 

FAR     Fix Asset Register 

FEED     Finance, Economy and Enterprise Development 

GRAP     General recognised Accounting Practices  
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ICT     Information and Communication Technology 

IDS     Institutional Development and Support 

IFS     Interim Financial Statement   

IRE     Irregular Expenditure  

ISO     Information Security Office  

IT     Information Technology 

ITSM     Information Technology System Management 

MEC     Member of Executive Council 

HOD     Head of Department 

PFMA     Public Finance Management Act 

TR     Treasury Regulations 

MRRRP Mafikeng Rebranding Repositioning Renewal 

Programme      

MPAT     Management Performance Assessment Tool 

MTEF     Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

MTSF     Medium Term Strategic Framework 

NDP     National Development Plan 

NWPG     North West Provincial Government 

NT     National Treasury 

PA     Performance Agreement  

PAAP     Post Audit Action Plan 

PACO     Provincial Advisory Committee 

PIAAP     Post Internal Audit Action Plan 
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PMDS     Performance Management and Development System 

POE     Portfolio of Evidence 

PT     Provincial Treasury  

PSCBC    Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council 

PWD     Public Works Department 

RACF     Resource Access Control Facility 

SLA     Service Level Agreement 

SMME     Small Medium and Micro-sized Enterprises 

SCM     Supply Chain Management 

SITA     State Information Technology Agency 

SDIP     Service Delivery Improvement Plan 

SSA     State Security Agency 

TID      Technical Indicator Description 

UPS     Un-interruptible Power Supply 
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Foreword  by 

the  Premier 

3.

The Annual Report of the financial year 2018/19 presents the

Office of the Premier's performance to the community of North

West on the achievements, against the Strategic Goals and

Objectives of the Province. During the year under review, the

following achievements in relation to policy directives and

strategic outcome related goals have been registered; 

Improve MPAT Governance Level, Assessment on the implemen-

tation of Human Resource Strategy and Planning by Provincial

Departments, Draft Annual Performance Plans and integrated

Development Plan assessed for alignment to provincial priorities.

Regarding challenges for the financial year under review, we have had service delivery and governance

weaknesses that required national government to put this province under Section 100 (1) (a) and 100(1)

(b), to address maladministration, non-adherence to supply chain prescripts, poor service delivery, as

well as poor governance, among others. 

We have had to self-introspect and self-correct, and as a result, we are on a proper trajectory towards

a clean and transparent government, that is able to deliver quality basic services to the people of the

North West Province.

The national intervention in the Province has made significant strides in addressing the governance and

service delivery challenges facing our Province. 

As we move towards the sixth administration, we are ready to steer the administration to a smooth

transition and solid handover to the 6th Administration, post the May 8 National and Provincial Elections.

As the Office of the Premier, we have made significant progress in steering this Province in the right

direction, and strengthening the capacity of government to deliver quality basic services to the people,

as well as mending the broken bridges between ourselves, communities, and organised labour. 

Let me express my sincere gratitude to the Portfolio Committee, for their oversight role on the Executive,

Mr Sibusiso Mpanza and the team for his sterling work, senior management team and all officials within

the Office of the Premier. 

In conclusion, the Office of the Premier is committed to serve the community of North West Province,

and strengthen the oversight role on monitoring the implementation of service delivery through Provincial

Departments.

______________________

PROF T.J. MOKGORO (MPL)

PREMIER OF THE NORTH wEST PROVINCE
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Report  of   the

Accounting 

Officer

4.

The Annual Report 2018-2019 is presented in terms of Section 65. 

1. (a) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) of 1999.  The

report outlines the achievement made on the goals, objectives and

targets contained in the Strategic Plan 2015/2019 and Annual

Performance Plan 2018-2019 financial year. Based on the mandates outlined in these documents, it is important

that the Office account to the public about service delivery expectations and the budget allocated towards the

achievement on the mandates.

The assessment of performance during the year under review indicates some of the key following achievements; 

• Improve MPAT Governance Level. 

• Assessment report on the implementation of Human Resource Strategy and Planning by provincial

departments. 

• Assessment of draft annual performance plans and integrated development plans for alignment to

provincial priorities. 

• Payment  of  service providers  within 21 days has improved to 91%  and  within 30 days  from 92%

to 95%  respectively during this financial year 

• Provincial intergovernmental programmes coordinated 

• Communication initiatives coordinated to promote Bokone Bophirima Corporate brand 

• Profiled Townships and Small Dorpies’ Development plans

• Co-ordinated district wide service delivery intervention programmes 

• For the period under review, the OoP investigated the cases of alleged transgressions of prescripts by

employees and those who were suspected of having transgressed rules and regulations were subjected

to consequence management through disciplinary processes.

• Despite the achievements above the Office experienced massive service delivery protests throughput

the province which impacted adversely on frontline service delivery and resulted in the invocation of

Section 100 (1) (a) (b) of the Constitution. Since the invocation Section 100 (1) (a) (b) interventions as

a yardstick to intensify our efforts to achieving our provincial priorities. In order to do so we need to

ensure an improved and clean administration, as well as the provision of quality services through a

cooperative governance approach, with visible evidence through coordination, oversight, integrated

planning, monitoring and evaluation. 
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• Overview of the financial results of the department: 

o Departmental receipts 
 

2018/2019 2017/2018  
 

Departmental receipts 
Estimate Actual 

Amount 
Collected 

(Over)/Under 
Collection 

 

Estimate 
 

Actual 
Amount 

Collected 

(Over)/Under 
Collection 

 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Tax Receipts       
Casino taxes       
Horse racing taxes       

Liquor licences       
Motor vehicle licences       

Sale of goods and services 
other than capital assets 

220 275 (55) 245 249 (4) 

Transfers received       
Fines, penalties and forfeits       
Interest, dividends and rent on 
land 

      

Sale of capital assets       
Financial transactions in assets 
and liabilities 

147 752 (605) 105 205 (100) 

Total 367 1 027 (660) 350 454 (104) 

 
 
o Programme Expenditure  

 
2018/2019 2017/2018  

Programme 
Name 

Final 
Appropriat

ion 

Actual  
Expenditure 

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure  

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual  
Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure  

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Administration 127 210   115 597   11 613   117 700   116 980  720 

Institutional 
Development 

 313 142   225 747   87 395   419 500   414 440  5 060 

Policy and 
Governance 

166 101   159 690   6 411   243 322   224 732  18 590 

Total  606 453   501 034   105 419   780 522   756 152  24 370 

 
       

Virements 
 

Voted funds and 
Direct charges 

Adjusted 
Appropriatio

n 

Shifting 
of Funds 

Virements  Final 
Appropriati

on 

Actual  
Expenditure 

Variance  % Exp 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % 
Administration  127 440   -      (230)  127 210   115 597   11 613  90,9% 

Institutional 
Development 

 313 323    -     (181)  313 142   225 747   87 395  72,1% 

Policy and 
Governance 

 165 690    -       411 166 101   159 690   6 411  96,1% 

Total  606 453    -    -  606 453   501 034   105 419  82,6% 

 
Unauthorised expenditure 
• The office did not incur any unauthorised expenditure during the period under review. 
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Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
• Fruitless expenditure incurred during 2018/19 amounts to R 000 and it relates to 

interest charged on late payments of Telkom account and Auditor-General, non-
attendance where catering was provided and vat charged by non- VAT Vendors. 

• Disciplinary process are still in progress. 
 
Future plans of the department 
 
The Office plan to continue with the implementation of the planned Provincial Priorities that 
will ensure the achievement of the five year strategic plan. 

 
Public Private Partnerships 

             
The Office of the Premier does not have any Private Partnership transactions. 

 
Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued 
None 

 
New or proposed activities 
 
North West Development Corporation (Public Entity) was transferred to the Department of 
Economy and Enterprise Development during 2018/19 budget adjustment. 

 
Supply chain management 
 
All unsolicited bid proposals concluded for the year under review; 
None 

 
Indicate whether SCM processes and systems are in place to prevent irregular 
expenditure 
• The office has introduced the use of pre-audit checklist on all procurement processes. 
• The office has introduced a policy to prevent unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure. 
 

Challenges experienced in SCM and how they were resolved    
• The SCM structure is not aligned to framework for Supply Chain Management and 

North West SCM policy framework. 
 

Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties 
None 

 
Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury  
None 

 
Events after the reporting date 
None 

 
Other  
None 
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Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation  
 
I appreciated the commitment of the management in ensuring that the Office fast track service 

delivery to our communities despite the challenges we faced. I therefore thank all service 

providers and other stakeholders and the citizens of North West Province for working with us.  

 
Conclusion 
 
The Office will always ensure that effective and efficient channels of communication are made 
available to ensure that communities are able to communicate with government any time 
when the need arises. 
 
 

_________________ 
MR S MPANZA 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER  
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:  
 
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.  
 
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 
 
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report 
as issued by National Treasury. 
 
The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the 
modified cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National 
Treasury. 
 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements 
and for the judgements made in this information.   
 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal 
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and 
reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual 
financial statements. 
 
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements. 
 
In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the 
human resources information and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2019. 
 
 
Yours faithfully  
 
 
 
___________________  

MR S MPANZA 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER  
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER 
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6.  STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 
!

 6.1  Vision  
 
A united, non-racial, non-sexist and prosperous democratic society for the people of Bokone-
Bophirima. 

!

6.2  Mission 
!

To facilitate integrated governance, planning and accelerate service delivery that is people-centered 

for improved economic growth in Bokone-Bophirima. 

!

6.3  Values 
 

The following are core values that the office will adhere to in promoting integrated governance and 

accelerated service delivery for improved quality of life and economic growth for the people of Bokone 

Bophirima: 

• Caring 

• Agile 

• Responsive 

• Excellence 

!

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES 
!

The Office of the Premier (herein after referred to as “the Office”) derives its mandate from the 

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, the Public Service Act, Public Finance 

Management Act and related prescripts that in turn determine its functional mandate 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE 

The mandate of the Office of the Premier is to support the Premier in the execution of his 

constitutional responsibilities. The Premier performs executive, legislative and ceremonial functions 

and responsibilities as stipulated in Chapter 6 of the Constitution. Section 125(2) of the Constitution 

determines that the Premier exercises the executive authority over the province together with the 

other members of the Executive Council. The Premier is also responsible for inter-governmental 

relations in terms of Chapter 3 of the Constitution. The Premier appoints Members of the Executive 

Council (MECs) and assigns functions, responsibilities and delegates powers to them. 
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The Constitution defines the powers and functions of the Premier, among others, as follows: 

• To assent to, sign and promulgate Bills duly passed by the Provincial Legislature and in 

the event of a procedural shortcoming in the legislative process, to refer a Bill passed 

by the Provincial Legislature back for further consideration by such Legislature; 

• To convene meetings of the Executive Council; 

• To appoint commissions of enquiry; and 

• To make such appointments as may be necessary under the powers conferred upon 

him/her by this Constitution or any other law. 

The Premier and MECs must act in accordance with the Constitution and provide the Legislature with 

full and regular reports concerning matters under their control. The Premier and MECs must act in 

accordance with the code of conduct prescribed by national legislation 

 

9. LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 

In terms of section 125 (1) - (6) of the Constitution, the executive authority of the Province is vested in 

the Premier of that Province, 

(i) Subject to the provisions of sections 85(2) (c) and 125(2)(e) of the Constitution, be responsible for 

intergovernmental relations on an administrative level between the relevant [provincial administration] 

province and other [provincial administration] provinces a well as national departments and national 

government component and the intra governmental cooperation between the relevant [provincial 

administration] Office of the Premier and the various provincial departments and provincial 

government components including the co-ordination of their actions and legislation and, 

(ii) Subject to the provisions of paragraph (d) be responsible   for the giving of strategic 

direction on any matters referred to in section [3(2) (a)] 3(1). 

10. POLICY MANDATE 

The National Development Plan (NDP) Vision 2030 is the blueprint for socio-economic transformation 

and development in South Africa. The goals of the NDP of reducing poverty, unemployment and 

inequality can be realised by growing an inclusive economy, enhancing the state capacity, as well as, 

promoting leadership and partnership. 

The Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) is the implementation plan of the NDP. It reflects the 

commitments made in the 2014-2019 elections manifesto of the governing party, including the 

commitment to implement the NDP. The MTSF sets out the actions that government targets to 

achieve based on National, Provincial and Local Government plans.  
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11. ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE PREMIER 

 

The information furnished in this section should correlate with information provided in the related 

party transactions disclosure note to the financial statements and the information on the entities. 

 

The table below indicates the entities that report to the Premier. 

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial 

Relationship 

Nature of 

Operations 

Youth  

Entrepreneurship 

Services 

Schedule 3C Public 

Entity   

Established in terms of 

the North West Youth 

Entrepreneurship 

Services Fund Act, No 

06 of 2016 

R62 000 To promote and 

support youth owned 

enterprises and 

initiatives and roll out 

skills development 

programmes geared 

towards job creation 

 
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

12.
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 
!

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to 
provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the 
performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with 
material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on 
other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report. 
 
Refer to page XXXX of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial 
Information. 

 
2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE 
!

2.1 Service Delivery Environment 
   

The Office uses the complaints management system as a key service for service delivery 
improvement. The Provincial Call Center Toll Free hotline is a mechanism used by the 
community to report on service delivery issues. The Office facilitates the process of 
transferring the calls to the relevant departments and follow-up on progress.  
Problems encountered  
Due to system issues created by the previous service provider, the entire case management 
memory was lost. All cases had to be manually captured and some cases on the system were 
not captured at all due to access problems. 

 

Corrective steps 

The Manual system will be utilized until a new case management system is implemented. 

2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan 

!

!"#$%&'()#*'&%"$+%&,"$+"(+&%

Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  
standard of 

service 

Desired standard 
of service 

Actual 
achievement 

Facilitation of 
service delivery 
intervention 

Communities 86% 90% Q1:80% 
Q2:63% 
Q3:56% 
Q4:65% 

!

!

!

-",./%0'1'%"(("$2'3'$,&%4#,.%5'$'6#*#"(#'&%78/$&91,",#/$%"**'&&%',*:;%
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Current/actual arrangements Desired arrangements Actual achievements 

Access to Service  Reduction of protest 
marches  

Q1:80% 
Q2:63% 
Q3:56% 

Q4:65% 

!

<'()#*'%+'1#)'(=%#$6/(3",#/$%,//1%

Current/actual information 
tools 

Desired information tools Actual achievements 

ITSM 9 fully functional  ( Q1 
and Q2) 

Manual System partially  

functional  

 

Fully functional electronic 
case management system. 

Manual system in place. 
(System partially  

Functional) 

 

!

8/3>1"#$,&%3'*."$#&3%

Current/actual complaints 
mechanism 

Desired complaints 
mechanism 

Actual achievements 

Call Centre (Toll Free) Call Centre (Toll Free) Call Centre (Toll Free) 

Walk-ins Walk-ins Walk-ins 

Suggestion boxes Suggestion boxes Suggestion boxes 

Complaints Suggestion form Ward Operation Centres Complaints Suggestion form 

Email 

 

Complaint Suggestion Form  Email 

 
 10X10 campaign  

 SMS Premium Service  
 

2.3 Organisational environment  
The organisational structure was approved in March 2018 and provides the Director General 
with the responsibility to focus on provincial and executive support matters.  

The North-West Province was placed under Section 100 (1) (a) (b) of the Constitution 
following service delivery protests in the Province in the 2018/2019 financial year. 

2.4 Key policy developments and legislative changes 
There were no key policy developments and legislative changes for the period under review 

3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS 
 

The strategic outcome oriented goals as per the Strategic Plan and the progress made 

towards the achievement of the 5 year targets are detailed below per programme. Significant 

achievements with regard to outcome 12 (An efficient, effective and development- oriented 

public service) which is applicable to the Office may be expressed in the consistent 

improvement of the Provincial performance in the Management Performance Assessment tool 

(MPAT). 
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4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME 
!

4.1 Programme 1: Administration 
 

Programme Purpose  

The programme is responsible for the provision of efficient and effective administrative 
support services to the Office of the Premier. 

• Sub-Programmes 
 

Premier Support, Executive Support and Stakeholder Management Services, Corporate 
Management, Financial Management  
 
• Strategic Objectives for the financial year under review 
 

Sub Programmes Strategic Objectives 

Premier Support To co-ordinate and manage the Premier’s political, administrative 
and special priority programmes. 

Financial Management To provide effective and efficient financial management services 
in the Office    order to obtain clean audit. 

Corporate Management To provide effective and efficient corporate management services 
in the Office. 

Executive Support and Stakeholder 
Management services  

To Management the provision of Executive support and 
stakeholder management services. 
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Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements. 
Strategic objectives:   

Strategic objectives Actual 
Achievement 
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

Actual 
Achievement 
2018/2019 

Deviation 
from 
planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievemen
t for 
2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

To co-ordinate and manage 
the Premier’s political, 
administrative and special 
priority programmes. 

24 24 24  

 

To provide effective and 
efficient financial 
management services in 
the Office in order to obtain 
clean audit 

MPAT Level 
2.4 

MPAT 
Level 3 

MPAT Level 
3.4 

 

 

To provide effective and 
efficient financial 
management services in 
the Office in order to obtain 
clean audit 

12 12 12  

 

To provide effective and 
efficient financial 
management services in 
the Office in order to obtain 
clean audit 

1 1 1  

 

To provide effective and 
efficient corporate 
management services in 
the Office 

MPAT Level 3 
MPAT 
Level 3! MPAT Level 3  

 

To provide effective and 
efficient corporate 
management services in 
the Office 

MPAT Level 
2.9 

MPAT 
Level 3!

MPAT Level 
3.2 

 

 

To manage the provision of 
Executive Support and 
Stakeholder Management 
Services 

NA 8 8  

 

To manage the provision of 
Executive Support and 
Stakeholder Management 
Services!

NA 4 4  

 

To manage the provision of 
Executive Support and 
Stakeholder Management 
Services! NA 8 3 5 

NWDC has been 
transferred to EED. 
The activities of YES 
have not been 
implemented due to 
the delay in the 
appointment of the 
YES Board and the 
CEO. 
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Performance indicators 
 

Programme / Sub-programme: Premier Support 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  
2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  
2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 
2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
sector and 
stakeholder 
meetings held 
to promote the 
5 concretes 

N/A N/A 24 24 24 0 

 

 
Programme / Sub-programme: Executive Support and Stakeholder Management Services  

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 
 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 
 

Deviation 
from 
planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
provincial 
intergovernmental 
programmes 
coordinated 

N/A 8 8 8 8 0 

 

Number of 
investment 
opportunities 
facilitated in 
VTSD areas 

N/A N/A 4 4 4 0 

 

Report on 
performance of 2 
State Owned 
Entities 

N/A N/A 8 8 3 5 

NWDC has 
been 
transferred to 
EED. The 
activities of 
YES have not 
been 
implemented 
due to the 
delay in the 
appointment 
of the YES 
Board and the 
CEO. 
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Programme / Sub-programme: Financial Management  

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievemen
t  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  
2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achieveme
nt 

2018/201
9 

Deviation from 
planned target 
to Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Financial 
Management 
MPAT Level 
Obtained  

N/A MPAT level 
3 

MPAT level 
2.4 

MPAT 
level 3 

MPAT 
level 3.4 

 

 

Monitor the 
report on 
Provincial   
Financial 
Management 

N/A N/A 12 12 12 0 

 

Audit opinion 
obtained in 
respect of the 
previous 
financial year 

N/A N/A 1 1 1 0 

 

 
 
 

Programme / Sub-programme: Corporate Management  

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  
2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  
2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 
2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Human 
Resource 
Management 
MPAT level 
obtained 

MPAT level 
2.5 

MPAT level 
3!

MPAT level 
2.9 

MPAT 
level 3.5!

MPAT 
Level 3 

0.5 

The Office was 
penalised due to 
93% of 
Performance 
Agreements 
captured on 
PERSAL instead of 
100% 

Strategic 
Management 
MPAT level 
Obtained 

MPAT level 
2.5 

MPAT level 
3!

MPAT level 
3 

MPAT 
level 3.5!

MPAT level 
3.2 

0.3 

The Departmental 
Guidelines were 
not reviewed by 
the time the POE 
was loaded on the 
MPAT System 

 
Provide reasons for all deviations: 
 
NWDC has been transferred to EED. The activities of YES have not been implemented due to the delay in 
the appointment of the YES Board and the CEO. 
 
The Office was penalised due to 93% of Performance Agreements captured on PERSAL instead of 100% 
The Departmental Guidelines were not reviewed by the time the POE was loaded on the MPAT System 
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

 
The office will expedite the recruitment of staff in the new financial year as nominations for the Board 
and the CEO post were advertised in March 2019 

The Office of the Premier met the national MPAT standard of 3 (minimum). The standard set for Office of 
the Premier for self-improvement was 3.5 and performance on both indicators were slightly below. The 
MPAT system was subsequently discontinued Nationally. Indicators were amended for 2019/2020. 

 
 
Changes to planned targets 

None 

Linking performance with budgets 
 
 Sub-programme expenditure – Programme one 

2018/2019 2017/2018 
Final 

Appropriation 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Sub- Programme 
Name 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Premier Support  20 969   17 679   3 290   19 724   18 827  897 

Executive 
Council Support 

 7 942   7 584   358   8 156   6 527  1 629 

Director General 
Support 

 46 729   43 512   3 217   51 936   51 538  398 

Financial 
Management 

 51 570   46 822   4 748   37 884   40 088  (2 204) 

Total  127 210   115 597   11 613   117 700  116 980  
720 

  
The under spending on the Programme is mainly due to inadequate needs analysis on office furniture 
and office equipment (R1.9 million) resulting in under spending, underperformance on Premier’s 
Discretionary fund amounting to R1.6 million and travelling & subsistence amounting to R2 million due 
to reduced planned trips to be travelled.  
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4.2 Programme 2: Institutional Development Support 
 
Programme Purpose 
 

The programme is primarily mandated to provide strategic leadership and support to all 
provincial Departments through co-ordination, monitoring, evaluation and intervention of the 
implementation of policy frameworks, strategies and programmes related to Human 
Resources Strategy and Planning , Employee Wellness and Relations, Provincial Legal 
Advisory Services, Government Information Technology Office, Communication, Ikatisong 
School of Governance as well as Integrity Management. 
 
• Sub-Programmes 

 
Human Resource Strategy and Planning,! Government Information Technology Office, 
Communication, Ikatisong School of Governance, Integrity Management, Provincial Legal 
Advisory Services, Employee Wellness and Relations. 
 

• Strategic Objectives for the financial year under review 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sub-Programmes  Strategic Objectives  

Human Resource Strategy and 
Planning, 

To improve the level of compliance on human resource strategy 
and planning for good governance. 

Government Information 
Technology Office 

To optimise service delivery through centralised implementation of 
information Communication Technology (ICT). 

Communication 
To provide a functional government communication system which 
enables citizen empowerment and involvement in their own 
development. 

Ikatisong School of Governance 
To enhance implementation of provincial priorities through 
individual, organisational and institutional capacity development. 

Integrity Management 
To implement minimum security standards and strengthen 
programmes that will eradicate fraud, corruption and acts of 
misconduct; and promote ethics and integrity. 

Provincial Legal Advisory 
Services 

To provide legal services in the province in order to manage 
litigation rate. 

Employee Wellness and Relations 
To improve the level of compliance on quality of employee 
wellness, occupational health programmes and labour relations. 

27
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



& & & &
& & & & &

& & & &
!
!

!
!

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Strategic objectives:   

Strategic objectives Actual 
Achievement 
2017/ 2018 

Planne
d 
Target 
2018/2
019 

Actual 
Achieveme
nt 
2018/2019 

Deviation from 
planned target 
to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2018/ 
2019 

Comment on deviations 

To improve the level of 
compliance on human resource 
strategy and planning for good 
governance. 

N/A 1 1 0 

 

To improve the level of 
compliance on human resource 
strategy and planning for good 
governance. 

N/A 2 2 0 

 

To improve the level of 
compliance on human resource 
strategy and planning for good 
governance. 

N/A 2 2 0 

 

To optimise service delivery 
through centralised 
implementation of information 
Communication Technology 
(ICT) 

12 4 3 1 

The second shared ICT 
services was planned for 
NW Gambling Board but 
was not achieved due to 
legal challenges  

To optimise service delivery 
through centralised 
implementation of information 
Communication Technology 
(ICT). 

 
 

N/A 
 3 

 
0 
 

 
 
3 
 
 

None of the Three (3) 
identified data centres 
were upgraded. The ICT 
Budget was reduced 
following the adjustment 
Budget process 

To optimise service delivery 
through centralised 
implementation of information 
Communication Technology 
(ICT). 

N/A 16 4 12 

During the adjustment 
budget process, the ICT 
budget was reduced- of 
the 16 sites targeted only 
6 have been prioritized. 
Work on this indicator 
commenced late in the 
third quarter and only 
four sites could be 
delivered and the 
remaining 2 sites will be 
delivered before the end 
of May 2019 
 

To provide a functional 
government communication 
system which enables citizen 
empowerment and involvement 
in their own development. 8 48 15 33 

Semphete publication 
could not be published; it 
was suspended by the 
service provider citing 
non-payments. The last 
copy was published 3rd 
August 2018. 
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To provide a functional 
government communication 
system which enables citizen 
empowerment and involvement 
in their own development. 16 30 26 4 

May day Event was not 
held due to service 
delivery protests, Older 
Persons Luncheon event 
was not held and 2 of the 
planned setsokotsane 
10x10 campaign events 
were not held 

To provide a functional 
government communication 
system which enables citizen 
empowerment and involvement 
in their own development. 

8 20 20 0  

To enhance implementation of 
provincial priorities through 
individual, organisational and 
institutional capacity 
development. 

10 8 8 0  

To enhance implementation of 
provincial priorities through 
individual, organisational and 
institutional capacity 
development. 

N/A 2 2 0  

To implement minimum security 
standards and strengthen 
programmes of that will 
eradicate fraud, corruption and 
acts of misconduct; and 
promote ethics and integrity. 

80% 100% 100% 0  

To implement minimum security 
standards and strengthen 
programmes of that will 
eradicate fraud, corruption and 
acts of misconduct; and 
promote ethics and integrity. 

12 12 12 0  

To implement minimum security 
standards and strengthen 
programmes of that will 
eradicate fraud, corruption and 
acts of misconduct; and 
promote ethics and integrity. 

12 12 12 0  

To provide legal services in the 
province in order to manage 
litigation rate. 

12 12 11 1 

The Socio-Economic bill 
had to be published in the 
gazette before 
certification to factor in 
public comments. The 
publication process has 
since expired within the 
financial year. 
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To provide legal services in the 
province in order to manage 
litigation rate. 

6% 12% 0% 12% 

Response from 
departments was poor 
during the financial year 
and no assessment on the 
litigation rate could be 
made 

To improve the level of 
compliance on quality of 
employee wellness, occupational 
health programmes and labour 
relations. 

N/A 1 1 0  

To improve the level of 
compliance on quality of 
employee wellness, occupational 
health programmes and labour 
relations. 

N/A 2 2 0  

To improve the level of 
compliance on quality of 
employee wellness, occupational 
health programmes and labour 
relations. 

N/A 2 2 0  

!
Performance indicators 
 

Programme / Sub-programme: Human Resource Strategy and Planning 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Assessment 
report on the 
implementation 
of HRS&P    by 
provincial 
departments 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
1 1 0 

 

Number of 
organisational 
development 
interventions 
provided to 
departments 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
2 2 0 

 

Number of 
Human 
Resource 
Practices 
interventions 
provided to 
departments 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
2 2 0 
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Programme / Sub-programme: Government Information Technology Office 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 
 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 
 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  
2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
Local 
Municipalities 
provided with 
Shared ICT  
services 

N/A N/A N/A 4 

 

 

3 

!

1 

The second 
shared ICT 
services was 
planned for NW 
Gambling Board 
but was not 
achieved due to 
legal challenges  

Number of 
Provincial 
Data Centres 
upgraded 

16 16 3 3 0 3 

None of the 
Three (3) 
identified data 
centres were 
upgraded. The 
ICT Budget was 
reduced 
following the 
adjustment 
Budget process 

Number of 
NWPG SITES 
with improved 
network 
performance 

N/A N/A N/A 16 4 12 

During the 
adjustment 
budget process, 
the ICT budget 
was reduced- of 
the 16 sites 
targeted only 6 
have been 
prioritized. Work 
on this indicator 
commenced late 
in the third 
quarter and only 
four sites could 
be delivered and 
the remaining 2 
sites will be 
delivered before 
the end of May 
2019 
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Programme / Sub-programme: Communication 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achieveme
nt  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 
 

Actual 
Achieveme
nt 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from 
planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achieveme
nt  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
citizen-
centred 
newspaper 
produced 

N/A 
N/A! N/A!

48 15 33 

Semphete publication 
could not be published; 
it was suspended by the 
service provider citing 
non-payments. The last 
copy was published 3rd 
August 2018. 

Number of 
government 
events 
promoted N/A 

N/A! N/A!
30 26 4 

May workers day could 
not be promoted due to 
the unrest in the 
Province. Setsokotsane 
10x10 campaigns were 
discontinued. Older 
Persons Luncheon event 
was not held. 

Number of 
communicati
on initiatives 
coordinated 
to promote 
Bokone 
Bophirima 
Corporate 
brand 

N/A N/A 16 20 20 0  

 

Programme / Sub-programme: Ikatisong School of Governance 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
Provincial 
Learning and 
Development 
Programmes 
facilitated 

N/A!
N/A N/A 8 

 

 

8 

 

0  

Number of 
skills 
development 
partnership 
implemented 

N/A!
N/A N/A 2 2 0  
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Programme / Sub-programme: Integrity Management 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Percentage  of 
forensic 
investigations 
managed 

100% 75% 23% 100% 100% 0 

 

Number of 
interventions 
implemented 
towards 
achieving the 
National 
Anticorruption 
Strategy 

N/A N/A 12 12 12 0 

 

Number of 
minimum  
security 
standards  
coordinated 

N/A N/A 9 12 12 0 

 

!

Programme / Sub-programme: Provincial Legal Advisory Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from 
planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Quarterly  
Monitoring of 
the provincial 
legislative 
programme 

N/A N/A 12 12 11 1 

The Socio-
Economic bill had 
to be published in 
the gazette before 
certification to 
factor in public 
comments. The 
publication 
process has since 
expired within the 
financial year.  

Percentage 
Reduction of 
provincial 
spend on 
litigation 
monitored as at 
the beginning  
of the financial 
year 

N/A N/A 6% 12% 0 12% 

Poor response 
from Departments 
prevented the 
Office from 
assessing 
performance of 
this indicator 
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Programme / Sub-programme: Employee Wellness and Relations 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation from 
planned target 
to Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment 
on 
deviations 

Assessment 
report on the 
implementati
on of EHWP 
and Labour 
relations by 
Provincial 
departments 

N/A 

 
N/A! N/A!

1 1 0 

 

Number of 
employee 
health and 
wellness 
interventions  
provided to 
departments 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
2 2 0 

 

Number of 
employee 
relations  
interventions  
provided to 
departments 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
2 2 0 

 

!
 
Provide reasons for all deviations 
 
The second shared ICT services was planned for NW Gambling Board but was not achieved 
due to legal challenges  
 
None of the Three (3) identified data centres were upgraded. The ICT Budget being reduced 
following the adjustment Budget process 
 
During the adjustment budget process, the ICT budget was reduced- of the 16 sites targeted 
only 6 have been prioritized. Work on this indicator commenced late in the third quarter and 
only four sites could be delivered and the remaining 2 sites will be delivered before the end of 
May 2019 
 
Semphete publication could not be published; it was suspended by the service provider citing 
non-payments. The last copy was published 3rd August 2018. 
 
Older Persons Lunched event was not held and setsokotsane 10x10 campaigns were 
discontinued 
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 
 

()*!+,,-.*!-/!.011*2345!.67702-.83-29!3)*!8.3-:-3-*/!6,!3)*!;16:-2.-84!96:*127*23!3)1609)!3)*!<=

2*>/!0;?83*@!

()*!AB(!C0?9*3!>-44!C*!8:8-4*?!-2!3)*!2*>!,-282.-84!5*81!36!,-284-/*!3)*!603/382?-29!;16D*.3/@ 

 

E!;64-.5!?6.07*23!>)-.)!.67;*4!3)*!?*;8137*23/!36!1*;613!)8/!C**2!?18,3*?!C5!F*984!
/*1:-.*/!36!*2/01*!/0C7-//-62!6,!-2,61783-62!36!3)*!+,,-.*@!
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
None 
 
Linking performance with budgets 
 
Sub-programme expenditure 

 2018/2019 2017/2018 
Sub- Programme 
Name 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Strategic Human 
Resources 

 23 815   21 569   2 246   27 654   19 221  8 433 

Information 
Communication 
technology 

 105 168   101 860   3 308   186 185   178 107  8 078 

legal services  16 816   7 270   9 546   15 445   10 007  5 438 

communication 
services 

 60 694   22 400   38 294   57 581   58 689  (1 108) 

Programme 
Support  

 106 649   72 648   34 001   132 635   148 416  (15 781) 

Total  313 142   225 747   87 395   419 500   414 440  5 060 

 
The program is under spending and the main contributing factors were: Contract cancellation of ICT & 
Communication project (R34 million), Savings realised on Legal costs (R8.8 million) due to non-
receivable of claims from the State and Private Attorneys, unspent funds which were reserved for the 
accreditation (R1.5 million) of Ikatisong school of Government, Skills research project (R2.5 million), 
Batho Pele Public Service Excellence Awards, Public Lecture series regarding sec 100, Career 
exhibition and Expos, Seminar, (R11 million) etc. Ikatisong School of Government also had an 
unspent amount on bursaries (R13.8 million) for non-employees due to inadequate management 
system of beneficiaries.  

!
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4.3 Programme 3: Planning Performance Monitoring, Evaluation and Intervention 

!

PROGRAMME PURPOSE 

This programme is mandated to provide integrated planning, performance monitoring, 
evaluation and intervention in the Province. 

 
• Sub-programmes 

 
Provincial Planning and Support, Performance Monitoring and Evaluation, Service 
Delivery Monitoring and Intervention. 
 

• Strategic objectives for the financial year under review 
 

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Strategic objectives:   

Strategic objectives Actual 
Achievement 
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

Actual 
Achievement 
2018/2019 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

To coordinate, monitor 
and analyse integrated 
planning in the province 
in response to economic 
development !

12 12 12 0 

 

To coordinate, monitor 
and analyse integrated 
planning in the province 
in response to economic 
development !

22 22 22 0 

 

To coordinate, monitor 
and analyse integrated 
planning in the province 
in response to economic 
development !

N/A 2 1 1 

 

To coordinate, monitor 
and analyse integrated 
planning in the province 
in response to economic 
development !

N/A 4 4 0 

 

Sub-Programmes  Strategic Objectives  

Provincial Planning and Support 
To coordinate, monitor and analyse integrated planning in the Province in 
response to economic development  

Performance Monitoring and 
Evaluation 

To coordinate Provincial performance monitoring, evaluation and intervention 

Service Delivery and 
Intervention. 

To coordinate and monitor service delivery improvements plans and provide 
relevant interventions 
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Strategic objectives Actual 
Achievement 
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

Actual 
Achievement 
2018/2019 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

To coordinate, monitor 
and analyse integrated 
planning in the province 
in response to economic 
development !

N/A 115 115 0 

 

To coordinate, monitor 
and analyse integrated 
planning in the province 
in response to economic 
development 

N/A 1 1 0 

 

To coordinate provincial 
performance monitoring, 
evaluation and 
intervention!

12 12 11 1 

Lengthy eQPRS 
system verification 
processes by DPME 
delayed the final 
provincial report 

To coordinate provincial 
performance monitoring, 
evaluation and 
intervention 

N/A 2 2 0 

 

To coordinate and 
monitor service delivery 
improvements plans and 
provide relevant 
interventions!

82% 80% 66.25% 13.75% 

Due to system 
issues created by 
the previous service 
provider, the entire 
case management 
memory was lost. All 
cases had to be 
manually captured 
and some cases on 
the system were not 
captured at all due 
to access problems  

To coordinate and 
monitor service delivery 
improvements plans and 
provide relevant 
interventions!

4 4 4 

 

0 

 

To coordinate and 
monitor service delivery 
improvements plans and 
provide relevant 
interventions!

N/A 18 18 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To coordinate and 
monitor service delivery 
improvements plans and 
provide relevant 
interventions!

N/A 24 24 0 
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Performance indicators 

Programme / Sub-programme: Provincial Planning and Support 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  
2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement  
2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  
2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 
2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 
2018/2019 

 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
draft annual 
performance 
plans 
assessed  for 
alignment to 
provincial 
priorities 

N/A N/A 12 12 12 0 

 

Number of 
draft Municipal 
IDPS 
assessed for 
alignment to 
provincial 
priorities 

N/A 23 22 22 22 0 

 

Number of 
provincial 
priorities 
analysed (ACT 
& VTSD) 

N/A N/A 2 2 2 0 

 

Number of 
Provincial 
economic 
impact 
analysis 
conducted on 
the 
implementation 
of VTSD plans. 

N/A N/A 4 4 

 
!
&!
!

0 

 

Number of 
Townships and 
Small Dorpies’ 
Development 
plans profiled 

N/A N/A N/A 115 115 0 

 

Number of 
Provincial  
Development 
strategy 
implementation 
plan developed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

N/A 

 
 
 

N/A 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

0 
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Programme / Sub-programme: Performance Monitoring and Evaluation 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 
 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 
 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  
2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
Provincial 
performance 
reports 
produced in 
line with 
provincial 
priorities 

N/A! N/A! N/A! 12 11 1 

Lengthy 
eQPRS system 
verification 
processes by 
DPME delayed 
the final 
provincial 
report 

Number of 
monitoring 
reports on the 
implementatio
n of the 
Provincial 
Research and 
Evaluation 
Plan. 

N/A! N/A! N/A! 2 2 0 

 

!

!

        

 
 

 
  

 

 
  

 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
  

  
  

 

 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 

! !
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! ! !    

 
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

   

   
 
  
 

 

! ! !    

 

!

!

Programme / Sub-programme: Service Delivery Monitoring and Evaluation 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achievement  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achievement  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 

 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 

 

Deviation from 
planned target 
to Actual 
Achievement  

2018/2019 

Comment 
on 
deviations 

Percentage 
of service 
delivery 
complaints 
resolved 

N/A! N/A!
82% 80% 66.25% 13.75% 

Due to 
system 
issues 
created by 
the previous 
service 
provider, the 
entire case 
managemen
t memory 
was lost. All 
cases had to 
be manually 
captured 
and some 
cases on the 
system were 
not captured 
at all due to 
access 
problems. 
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Programme / Sub-programme: Service Delivery Monitoring and Evaluation 

Performance 
Indicator 

Actual 
Achieveme
nt  

2015/2016 

Actual 
Achieveme6t  

2016/2017 

Actual 
Achieveme
nt  

2017/2018 

Planned 
Target 

2018/2019 
 

Actual 
Achievement 

2018/2019 
 

Deviation 
from planned 
target to 
Actual 
Achievement  
2018/2019 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of 
district wide 
service delivery 
intervention 
programmes co-
ordinated 

N/A! N/A!
4 4 4  

 

Number  of RHR 
interventions  
implemented 
per municipality 
 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
18 18  

 

Number of life 
style diseases 
campaigns 
coordinated 
across the  
departments 
and 
Municipalities 

N/A! N/A! N/A!
24 24  

 

!

Provide reasons for all deviations 
 
Due to system issues created by the previous service provider, the entire case management 
memory was lost. All cases had to be manually captured and some cases on the system were 
not captured at all due to access problems. 
 
Lengthy eQPRS system verification processes by DPME delayed the final provincial report 
 

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 
 
The Provincial report will be available in May 2019 after the EQPRS system sign off by all 
HODs. 
The manual system will be utilised for the call centre until a new electronic case management 
system is implemented 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 

None 

Linking performance with budgets 
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Sub-programme expenditure 

 
 2018/2019 2017/2018 
Sub- 
Programme 
Name 

Final 
Appropriati
on 

Actual 
Expenditu
re 

(Over)/Unde
r 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriatio
n 

Actual 
Expenditu
re 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Inter-
Governmental 
Relations 

 6 879   5 783   1 096   7 192   7 713  (521) 

Provincial 
Policy 
Management 

 32 527   29 852   2 675   187 155   109 076  78 079 

Premier Priority 
Programme 

 10 151   8 687   1 464   14 366   8 004  6 362 

Programme 
Support 

 116 544   115 368   1 176   34 609   99 939  (65 330) 

Total  166 101   159 690   6 411   243 322   224 732  18 590 

 
Inadequate needs analysis on office furniture of (R1.9 million) is resulting in under spending. There was also 
a savings realised under goods & services as a result of adequate planning of events (R1.5 million).  

5. TRANSFER PAYMENTS 

5.1. Transfer payments to public entities  
!

Name of Public 
Entity 

Services rendered by 
the public entity 

Amount 
transferred to 

the public 
entity 

Amount spent by 
the public entity 

Achievements of 
the public entity  

Youth  

Entrepreneurship 

Services 

Schedule 3C Public 

Entity   

Established in terms 

of the North West 

Youth 

Entrepreneurship 

Services Fund Act, 

No 06 of 2016 

R62 000 R62 000 To promote and 

support youth 

owned enterprises 

and initiatives and 

roll out skills 

development 

programmes 

geared towards job 

creation 

5.2. Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities 
!

Not Applicable  
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6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS 
!

6.1. Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid 
!

The Office of the Premier does not have any conditional grants for the financial year under 
review. 

6.2. Conditional grants and earmarked funds received 
The Office of the Premier did not receive any conditional grants for the financial year under 
review. 

7. DONOR FUNDS 

7.1. Donor Funds Received 
The Office of the Premier did not receive any donor funds during the financial year under 
review. 

8. CAPITAL INVESTMENT 

8.1. Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan 
!

The office did not incur any expenditure on this category for the year under review. 

 
2018/2019 2017/2018 Infrastructure 

projects 
 

Final 
Appropriation 

R’000 

Actual  
Expenditure 

R’000 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 

Final 
Appropriation 

R’000 

Actual  
Expenditure 

R’000 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 
 New and 
replacement assets  

      

Existing 
infrastructure assets  

      

- Upgrades and 
additions 

- - - 1 770 1 770 0 

- Rehabilitation, 
renovations and 
refurbishments 

      

- Maintenance 
and repairs 

      

Infrastructure 
transfer  

      

- Current       
- Capital       

Total - - - 1 770 1 770 0 

 
!

!
! !
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1. INTRODUCTION 
!

The office of the Premier is committed to manage public resources and guarantee the 
realization of provincial goals in a manner essentially free of abuse and corruption, and with 
due regard for the rule of law. 

2. RISK MANAGEMENT 
!

• The risk management framework was approved by the Accounting Officer for the 2018/2019 
financial year included:  Risk Management Policy, Risk Management Strategy and 
Implementation plan, Risk Champions Charter and Risk Management Committee Charter. 

• The strategic risks assessed were incorporated into the Annual Performance Plan. 
• The strategic and operational risks identified and assessed were consistent with the annual 

objectives and reports issued by the assurance providers throughout the financial year. 
• The Office 2018/2019 financial year strategic, operational and fraud risk registers were 

approved by The Accounting Officer 
• Three Risk Management Committee quarterly meetings were convened and held during the 

period under review. 
• The Office obtained MPAT level 4 standard improving from level 1 obtained in the previous 

period. 
• The Audit Committee evaluates effectiveness of risk management systems through analysis 

of a quarterly governance cluster report compiled by the Office. 
• The strategic and operational risks identified and assessed were consistent with the annual 

objectives and reports issued by the assurance providers throughout the financial year. 
• Post Audit Action Plans were monitored throughout the financial year by the Risk 

Management Office. 
• The Risk Management team attended the annual Institute of Risk Management South African 

conference as part the developmental plan 
 

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION   
 

• The Department has an approved Fraud Prevention Policy and implementation plan. The 
policy will be reviewed during the Second Quarter 2019/20. 

 
• Allegations on Fraud and Corruption reported or referred by different stakeholders and walk-

ins, may be reported through the following sources:-  
 
• Via National Anti-Corruption Hotline 0800 701 701, Provincial Bua Le Puso,  

and anonymously through whistle blowing,  
• Request to conduct investigation can be made by Heads of Departments,  
• Any information received and or referred by member of public which warrant forensic 

investigations,  
• Any   State Owned Entity (SOE) that is funded by Provincial Government   can refer a 

matter which warrant forensic investigation 
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4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Conflict of interest disclosure: The Office of the Premier conducted verification process of the 
financial disclosures for SMS and other categories of employees. 

5. CODE OF CONDUCT  
During induction of newly appointed employees, awareness is raised with regard to issues 
relating to integrity management this in conjunction with Human Resource Management Unit. 

 

6. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
(a) Slippery floors: after the thorough occupational health and safety inspections within the 

department, the recommendations has been made to Public works and roads as (landlord) to 
install the gripping floor on a ramps where there is high concentration of slippery condition in 
order to minimize the chances of slip and fall that might result in a serious injuries to the 
employees. Another issue that was considered is the usage of floor polish that will not 
increase the chances of slip and fall. 
 

(b) Offices without open windows: the OHS inspection reports indicated that Garona building still 
experiencing the problem of windows that cannot be opened, and this could be a serious 
hazard to the health of employees. The report has been written to Public Works and Roads to 
address this matter. 
 

(c) Air conditioning malfunctioning: the problem of air conditioners that are malfunctioning in 
Garona building is a very critical issue, the report has been written for Public works and roads  
and  to attend and address this matter. 
 

(d) Lack of emergency exits: the issue of emergency exit was discussed by provincial SHERQ 
coordinator (Employee Health and Wellness) together with occupational health and safety 
practitioner’s occupied offices in Garona building, and it was announced that there is an 
emergency procedural system that is still being analysed and will be implemented in a short 
period of time. 
 

(e) Theft due to partitioned offices: this is a Security services related issue. 
 

(f) Toilet odour- pipes worn-out, over population in the building: the issue of toilet odour was 
reported and we can see that the correctional measures are being taken by Public works and 
Roads since the improvements are currently in place. 
 

(g) Water problem- both for sanitation and drinking: this is also the critical issue that concern the 
health of employees. At some stages the department experiences the serious problem with 
regards to water cartages and this could results in bringing health of employees in danger. 
Another issue is that some of the employees are complaining about drinkable water that 
causes them a running stomach etc.  
 

45
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



& & & &
& & & & &

& & & &
!
!

"(!
!

(h) Clinic and Gym sharing space: there are processes of Gym renovations and establishing of a 
sick bay in place in a department. 
 

The effects it has on the department: 

(a) Injury on duty: According to the OHS Act, it’s a duty of employer to make sure that the 
employees are working in a work environment that is safe and healthy in order to be 
productive at their work, therefore the department loses its production due to the 
continuation of injuries sustained by the employees at work. It is also the duty of the 
employer to pay the medical bills of the employee who injured at work. The employees is also 
liable to report the injury on time that stipulated by Act in order for OHS practitioner to 
conduct a thorough investigations on the cause of the injury. 
 

(b) Occupational diseases: same as injury on duty, the employer have a duty to provide healthy 
working place, and pay for medical bills for employees that sustained occupational disease 
while on duty and employee must follow all the relevant procedure stipulated by Act in order 
to receive help. Occupational disease also results in a negative impact towards the 
productivity within the department. 
 

(c) Lost items in case of theft (financial, trauma implications) that would also lead to low 
productivity and low morale: this can cause psychological disorders that will negatively affect 
the productivity and growth within the department. 
 

(d) Non adherence to emergency plans- more trauma for employees in case of emergency 
stampede: cases such as this never occurred. 

7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 
!

Provide commentary on the following: 
 
• The dates of the meeting 

27 February 2018 
23 March 2018 
24 March 2018 
24 May 2018 
28 August 2018 
13 November 2018 
 

• Matters raised by the Portfolio Committee and how has the department addressed these 
matters 

Date of the Meeting Recommendation by the Committee Response by the Office  

of the Premier 

27 February 2018 The status and legal authority on NWDC should be 
clarified as per present arrangement. 
 
All matters relating to legal issues are concluded. 

Targets that are not achieved should be given priority. 

Effected as per 
recommendation  
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Date of the Meeting Recommendation by the Committee Response by the Office  

of the Premier 

The Office Of the Premier should attend to indicators 
which were not achieved in the previous quarter. 

The NWDC establishment Act should be clarified in 
the next 7 days against the present arrangement. 

The NWDC and FEED collaboration should be clarified 
in the next 7 days. 

The project-related grants as per the adjustment 
budget spending be considered and a report be 
submitted in the next 14 days. 
The budget for Programme 2, particularly on ICT, 
should not be used or appropriated until there is full 
accountability. 

A plan on the spending should be presented to the 
committee that will include the SITA's accreditation 
compliance. 

The NWDC concerns raised by the AG should be 
addressed according to its mandate. 

The NWDC establishment act be clarified. 

The spending report for April be submitted in the next 
7 days. 

 

The budget be adopted except for the portion of the 
budget in the ICT within Programme 2 in the Office of 
the Premier until further clarity is obtained in this 
regard. 
 
 
 

 

The Office of the Premier should attend to indicators 
which were not achieved in the previous quarter. 
The NWDC must work with the mining industry to 
achieve the economic development projects. 

A report on the number of cases that have been 
finalised and the number of outstanding cases must be 
submitted to the committee within 7 days after tabling 
in the House. 

The Office of the Premier should provide a detailed 
report on VTSD plan within 14 days after tabling of the 
report in the House. 

NWDC must only concentrate on development of 
security co-operatives and the procurement must be 
left to the different departments. 

24 May 2018 

A detailed report on the breakdown of the expenditure 
of the Youth Enterprise Combo project should be 
submitted within 7 days after tabling of the report in the 
House. 

Effected as per 
recommendation 

!
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8. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS 
!

Resolution 
No. 

Subject Details Response by the 
department 

Resolved 
(Yes/No) 

1 Contesting of 
irregular 

The outcome of the report 
from National Treasury 
where the Office of the 
Premier is contesting the 
amount of R10 883 874 
as irregular should be 
submitted to the 
committee. 

National Treasury requested 
a forensic investigation 
report on the cases before 
they would consider the 
application. The office 
subsequently placed 2 senior 
managers on suspension 
following the outcome of the 
audit report by AGSA. 
Disciplinary processes are 
on-going. 

 

2-3 Consequence 
Management 

The National Treasury 
guidance on dealing with 
unauthorised, irregular 
and fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure should be 
complied with in order to 
ensure that all irregular 
expenditure is identified 
and recorded and the root 
cause of unauthorised, 
irregular and fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure is 
identified and addressed. 
Management should 
comply with section 38 
and chapter 10 of the 
PFMA regarding 
consequence 
management as a matter 
of urgency and be held 
accountable for non-
compliance in this regard.  
Furthermore, adequate 
internal controls should be 
implemented to prevent 
irregular expenditure. 

Unauthorised 
expenditure: Office of the 
Premier has not registered 
any unauthorised 
expenditure to date. 
Irregular expenditure & 
Fruitless & wasteful 
expenditure:  The office 
has cancelled the contract 
with the Implementing Agent 
during December 2018.  
Irregular expenditure & 
Fruitless & wasteful 
expenditure: Disciplinary 
action is currently taking 
place on identified cases of 
transgression. 

YES 

4 Adequate 
contract 
management 
system 

An adequate contract 
management system 
should be implemented 
to record, maintain and 
reconcile payments 
made on its 
commitments.  

The office has reviewed and 
is implementing an effective 
contract management 
register. Furthermore, a 
comprehensive and an up to 
date commitment register is 
maintained by the office for 
audit purposes. 

YES 
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Resolution 
No. 

Subject Details Response by the 
department 

Resolved 
(Yes/No) 

5 Records 
outstanding 
payments for 
goods and 
services 

An adequate system 
should be implemented 
to record outstanding 
payments for goods and 
services received but not 
yet paid at year-end.  

The office has adopted the 
use of an open order register 
as a system to monitor all 
outstanding payments for 
the periods and including at 
year end. This system is 
effective and is maintained 
by all provincial departments.  
Furthermore, the office 
performs reconciliations 
monthly on all invoices 
received from suppliers and 
to ensure that payments are 
processed timely 

YES 

6 Monitoring of  
the actual 
expenditure 
versus service 
delivery per 
programme 

The department should 
monitor the actual 
expenditure versus 
service delivery per 
programme on a monthly 
basis to prevent under 
spending. 

The Office has 
institutionalised monthly 
reporting to management 
on all matters relating to 
financial performance.  
Any potential financial 
pressure or under spending 
is given attention timely. 
Quarterly performance 
reviews are held to assess 
expenditure against 
predetermined objectives 

YES 

7 Improve 
technical 
indicator 
descriptions 

The department should 
improve technical 
indicator descriptions to 
be clear on what POE 
will be used to measure 
actual achievements. 

The Office held consultations 
with Programme managers 
to determine Technical 
Indicator descriptors. Such 
were submitted to internal 
audit to provide quality 
assurance.  

Yes 

8 Deficiencies in 
the records 
should be 
addressed to 
ensure that 
narrative 
reports are 
supported by 
and reconciled 
to POE 

Deficiencies in the records 
department should be 
addressed to ensure that 
narrative reports are 
supported by and 
reconciled to POE for 
claimed actual 
achievements.  POEs to 
substantiate actual 
achievements should be 
kept and reconciled iro 
reported achievements on 
a quarterly and annual 
basis. 

The office ensured that 
narrative reporting templates 
were implemented, 
supported by Activity 
registers and PoE 

Yes 
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Resolution 
No. 

Subject Details Response by the 
department 

Resolved 
(Yes/No) 

9 Financial 
statements 

The financial statements 
should be prepared in 
accordance with the 
prescribed financial 
reporting framework and 
supported by full and 
proper records as required 
by section 40(1)(a) and 
(b) of the PFMA. Financial 
statements should be 
adequately reviewed to 
detect and correct any 
misstatements before 
submission for audit. 

The following control 
measures are implemented 
to ensure that financial 
statements are prepared in 
line with the requirement of 
the prescribed framework: 
The Office prepares and 
submits quarterly financial 
statements to Provincial 
Treasury and Provincial 
Internal Audit for quality 
assurance. 
Finance team attend 
financial reporting 
workshop conducted by 
Provincial Treasury to 
enhance capacity to 
prepare sound financial 
statements; 
The office has furthermore 
prioritised appointment of 
additional resources to 
assist in the preparation of 
financial statements with 
quality as well as ensuring 
that adequate skills are 
transferred to officials. 

YES 

10-12 Improve 
procurement 
and contract 
management. 

Adequate controls should 
be implemented to 
improve procurement and 
contract management. 

The following monitoring 
controls are implemented 
to ensure that procurement 
and contract management 
is effective: 
The Office has reviewed 
internal control checklist for 
supply chain management 
processes and 
implementation thereof is 
monitored monthly; 
The Office monitors 
payments against 
contractors and update 
commitment register; 
Maintain proper record 
keeping, and Review, 
approve and implement 
financial delegations, 
policies, procedure manuals 
and standard operating 

YES 
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Resolution 
No. 

Subject Details Response by the 
department 

Resolved 
(Yes/No) 

procedures, and  
The office has 
strengthened the bid 
committee by including 
officials from the 
intervention team with the 
objective of avoiding any 
deficiencies. 

 
!

!

9.  PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS 
!

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Inconsistencies identified between the reported 
expenditure in the appropriation statement and 
the expenditure according to the General Ledger. 
 
The aggregated expenditure disclosed for the 
three programmes in the note to the 
appropriation does not agree to the total amount 
of actual expenditure. 

2018/2019 Reviewed Trial Balance not attached.  The 
actions are not yet completed by 09/04/2019.  
The status is considered in progress. 

Competitive bidding not followed for 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS services 
(01A064077P) 

2018/2019 Transaction is disclosed as irregular 
expenditure register. Finance to provide the 
irregular expenditure register reflecting the 
transaction in question. 

The price offered by the tenderer scoring the 
highest points is not market related leading to 
understatement of the irregular expenditure  
(MegaWorks contract) 

2018/2019 The transactions are included in the irregular 
expenditure register.  Finance to provide POE 
in form of irregular expenditure. 

Service providers not appearing on the suppliers 
list as per the transversal contracts leading to 
non-compliance with competitive bidding process 
and understated irregular expenditure. 

2018/2019 The transaction is included in the irregular 
expenditure register.  Finance to provide POE 
in form of irregular expenditure register.  The 
transaction related to TELKOM.  

Inability to test whether extensions approved 
exceeded 15% of the original contract price in 
respect of IBM SA; CA Southern Africa; AMA-
Superco; Bitanium Consulting and Info-Guardian 
leading to Limitation of audit scope. 

2018/2019 Transactions updated in the irregular 
expenditure register.  Finance to provide POE 
in form of irregular expenditure register.  
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Contravention of the Preferential Procurement 
Regulations in the appointment of a service 
provider to provide Smart Internet Connectivity to 
4 Villages in the NWPG thus resulting in the award 
being irregular.  
 
The none disclosure of payments to the supplier 
as irregular expenditure resulting in a 
misstatement the of AFS. 

2018/2019 The transactions are included in the irregular 
expenditure register.  Finance to provide POE 
in form of irregular expenditure register. 

Non-submission of hospitality register and losing 
bidder documentation in the tender to appoint a 
service provider leading to limitation of audit 
scope (develop, print & distribute the weekly 
newspaper (NEPO). 

2018/2019 Procurement plan is approved and monitored 
on a monthly basis.  Progress is reported to 
Provincial Treasury on monthly basis. 

Limitation of audit scope in the requisite 
information and documentation in the tender to 
appoint a service provider to provide social media 
services for NWPG. 
 
Non-compliance of Treasury regulation and over-
charging of the department on VAT by the 
contractor resulting in fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure (Minister media). 

2018/2019 The investigation in respect of NEPO related 
contracts are in progress.   
Irregular expenditure register is updated. 

SCM processes not followed by the implementing 
agent in obtaining approval for deviation and 
variation  
(14 days advert and changed pricing under the 
contract). 
 

2018/2019 The investigation in respect of NEPO 
(Implementing Agent) related contracts are in 
progress. Irregular expenditure register is 
updated. 

Non-compliance with the procurement prescripts 
in the appointment of a service provider to 
provide Provincial wide integrated contact centre 
solution resulting in irregular expenditure. 
(Setsokotsane call centre) 
 

2018/2019 The irregular expenditure Register is updated, 
the PoE is attached.  

Non-submission of the winning bids documents 
for Mavoni  leading to limitation of audit scope 

2018/2019 The checklist is implemented for both 
contractual and buy-outs contacts.  Finance to 
provide POE in form of checklist. 

Management did not consider the Financial 
Delegation when approving the payment of 
bursaries leading to  non-compliance and irregular 
expenditure. 

2018/2019 The process of investigation is not yet started. 
The action remains in progress at 09/04/2019. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Management failed to apply the Financial 
Delegation of authority correctly leading to 
approving transactions constituting irregular 
expenditure. 

2018/2019 A clear distinction between Financial and 
Procurement/Award delegation has been 
communicated to the Office and implemented. 
A memorandum to be provided by Finance as 
POE. 

Failure to implement controls over daily and 
monthly processing and reconciling of 
transactions leading to irregular expenditure 
(Deviation-TNA Media). 
 

2018/2019 The confirmation process receipt of service is 
conducted with the end user upon receipt of 
tax invoice.  A checklist is implement prior 
processing of payments.  Finance to provide 
Pre Audit checklist.:  

Competitive Bidding process not followed for 
procurement of services (Nepo:-TNA Media)  

2018/2019 The investigation in respect of NEPO related 
contracts are in progress. Irregular 
expenditure register is updated. 

Disciplinary actions not taken against officials who 
committed irregular 
expenditure 

2018/2019 Investigation in relation to the Implementing 
Agent contract has been initiated.  
 

No effective, appropriate steps and actions taken 
to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure. 

2018/2019 The pre audit checklist is implemented to 
ensure detection of the fruitless & wasteful 
and irregular expenditure.  Confirmation of 
services rendered/received is conducted upon 
receipt of tax invoice by SCM with the end 
users. 

Irregular expenditure condoned without approval 
from National Treasury. 

2018/2019 All cases requiring condonement are referred 
to Provincial Treasury for such.  SCM to 
provide POE in form of requests submitted for 
condonement of irregular expenditure. 

Ineffective control in place to ensure that 
complete, relevant and accurate information is 
accessible and available within reasonable time 
when required (Assets). 

2018/2019 Asset management to asset reconciliation, 
asset disposal certificates and inter 
departmental assets transfer’s certificates. 

The bar codes replaced with the new ones, whilst 
the Asset register still reflecting the old bar codes 
leading to limitation of audit scope. 

2018/2019 The asset verification progress is currently 
under way within the Office. 

Inconsistencies between Asset Register & 
Physically verified Assets resulting in limitation of 
audit scope. 

2018/2019 Asset verification process in progress. 

Not all Movable Assets are included in the Asset 
register leading to understatement of Assets. 

2018/2019 Monthly Asset reconciliation is performed and 
the asset register is updated. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Limitation leading to the inability to verify Assets 
that are on the Disposal list but still on the Asset 
Register. 

2018/2019 No progress registered 

Incorrectly classified and misallocation of 
allocation codes. 
 
Non-availability of sufficient and appropriate 
evidence to substantiate that delivery was made 
for the payment which resulted to misstatement 
of goods and services. 

2018/2019 The Budget Office is entrusted with allocation 
of expenditure against the SCOA.  The SCM 
Directorate also identify/detect the 
misallocations prior payment processing. 

No controls  in place to confirm project 
deliverables before payments in relation 
Enterprise Architecture Project. 

2018/2019 The services for an implementing Agent are 
discontinued through contract termination. 
Upon appointment of the services providers, 
Management will ensure that controls are 
implemented to confirm project deliverables 
prior processing of payments. 

No controls in place to confirm project 
deliverables before payments in relation Training; 
Implementation and Contract management 
services pertaining to the Enterprise Contract 
Management Project. 

2018/2019 The services for an implementing Agent are 
discontinued through contract termination. 
Upon appointment of the services providers, 
Management will ensure that controls are 
implemented to confirm project deliverables 
prior processing of payments. 

No controls in place to confirm project 
deliverables before payments in relation Microsoft 
License Alignment & Software Asset Management 
Assessment project. 

2018/2019 POE uploaded: SCM uploaded checklist of 
goods/ service received/ rendered 

Indicator and related target not measurable in 
relation to "Number of district wide service 
delivery interventions coordinated". 

2018/2019 The indicator has been amended with regard 
to the 2019/2020 revised APP performance 
indicators. 

Limitations of audit scope with regards to 
"Percentage of service delivery complaints 
resolved". 

2018/2019 The performance indicators for the 2019/2020 
financial has been revised as per the attached 
draft Annual Performance Plan. 

Inconsistencies between the reported 
achievement of service delivery complaints 
resolved and the register provided resulting in the 
unreliability of the reported performance leading 
to limitation of scope.  

2018/2019 The performance indicators for the 2019/2020 
financial have been revised as per the attached 
draft Annual Performance Plan. 
 
The information (POE) submitted will be 
subjected to verification against targeted and 
reported information. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Percentage of service delivery complaints 
resolved- leading to inconsistencies between the 
reported achievement and the register 
(Programme 3) 

2018/2019 The performance indicators for the 2019/2020 
financial have been revised as per the attached 
draft Annual Performance Plan. 

 Inadequate record keeping ensuring that 
complete, relevant and accurate information is 
accessible and available to support performance 
reporting (VTSD: Programme 3). 

2018/2019 In progress 

 Overstatement of the target reported as achieved 
for the "number of social based campaigns:  
indicator.  

2018/2019 The performance indicators for the 2019/2020 
financial has been revised as per the attached 
draft Annual Performance Plan. 

Key achievements supported with information 
contrary to the date source/collection per 
Technical Indicator Description (TID) in the APP 
leading to misstatement of performance in the 
AFS. 

2018/2019 The verification report is provided and 
attached. 

Number of district communication engagements 
used for citizen empowerment is overstated.  

2018/2019 The performance indicators for the 2019/2020 
financial have been revised as per the attached 
draft Annual Performance Plan. 

Management did not update the forensic 
investigation register on a regular basis to keep 
track of all cases received from prior year carried 
and all cases received during the current year.  
 

2018/2019 The register cannot be uploaded due to 
confidentiality reasons. The register is updated 
on monthly basis. 

Forensic investigation reported as concluded with 
no supporting documentation leading to 
performance information overstatement and 
understatement. 

2018/2019 The responsible Chief Directorate: Corporate 
Management Services. Directorate: Strategic 
Management. The performance information is 
validated by Strategic Management Directorate 
for completeness and accuracy on a quarterly 
basis upon submission by all Programmes. 
Performance review sessions are held to 
review reported information against POE and 
corrective actions are taken. 

The financial statements of the Office of the 
Premier have been understated with all the 
assets, liabilities and disclosures transferred from 
the NWPCA. 

2018/2019 Adjustment was prepared and affected.  
 

The commitment component in the Commitment 
Register was requested and recalculated leading 
to understatement of contract amount in the 
register. 

2018/2019 The transactions were verified and the 
irregular expenditure register was updated.  
Commitment register is updated on a monthly 
basis.  POE is attached. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Commitment Register does not agree with 
payment breakdown for 2016/2017. 

2018/2019 Commitment register is reviewed and the 
payments are being updated on monthly basis. 

Controls in place to ensure the timeous 
submission of information are not effective 
leading to non-compliance. 

2018/2019 Payment vouchers are filed in numerical order. 
Risk Management has verified the system and 
it is in place. 

Ineffective controls to ensure the timeous 
submission of information leading to limitation of 
the audit scope and non-compliance of the SCM 
Rules & Regulations. 

2018/2019 Filing system confirmed by Risk Management 

Amount per the commitment register could not be 
traced back to the General Ledger with the 
supplier's information leading to understatement 
of commitments. 

2018/2019 Payments are reconciled on monthly basis to 
the Commitment register.  

Payment vouchers inspected, and not all the 
supporting documentations indicated that it does 
relate to a commitment in the commitment 
register. 

2018/2019 The payments are reconciled to the 
commitment register on monthly basis. 

Controls in place to ensure the timeous 
submission of information are not effective 
leading to non-compliance. 

2018/2019 The payment vouchers filling system has been 
revised. 

Incorrect classification of acting allowance of the 
YES: CEO ('compensation of employees', instead 
of 'transfers & subsidies) 

2018/2019 The financial statements were adjusted to 
correct the misclassification in the 2017/2018 
financial year. 

Procurement and contract management whereby 
three quotations not obtained leading to 
Understatement of irregular expenditure. 

2018/2019 Irregular expenditure has been updated. The 
transactions are under investigations. 

Management failed to ensure effective contract 
management leading to non-compliance and 
understatement of prepayment and advance in 
respect of the IBM. 

2018/2019 The prepayment will be verified for correct 
classification by Management prior processing 
when payments are received.  The pre audit 
checklist is in place. 

Management failed to implement controls over 
daily and monthly processing and reconciling of 
transactions with Suppliers not paid within 30 
days leading to non-compliance and 
understatement of either payable or accruals. 

2018/2019 Tax invoices are received at a central point to 
ensure processing within 30 days. Risk 
management to verify the process. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Controls in place to ensure the timeous 
submission of information are not effective 
leading to non-compliance with the SCM Rules & 
Regulations and limitation of audit scope. 

2018/2019 The files are currently kept in a numerical 
order. Risk Management has verified the 
system. 

Non-disclosure of interest by Suppliers regarding 
the interest of being an official of government 
(SBD 4) leading to Non-compliance to SCM Rules 
and Regulations 

2018/2019 Officials are urged to disclose business interest 
through The Integrity Management Chief 
Directorate. 
The investigations are underway. 

Non-compliance with Public service Act and 
Regulation in relations to performance of  
remunerative work outside employment by public 
servants 

2018/2019 Conducted awareness and globalised annually 
Internally and to Provincial Departments for 
member to disclose with regard to RWOPS. 
Consequence management process: One 
official issued with a warning letter pertaining 
to non-compliance. 

Procurement and contract management whereby 
three quotations not obtained leading to 
Understatement of irregular expenditure. 

2018/2019 The irregular expenditure register is updated, 
investigations are under way  

Unfair and biased treatment of supplier based on 
award made to lowest supplier who did not quote 
on all the items in the specifications thus leading 
to irregular expenditure. 

2018/2019 Irregular expenditure register is updated. 
Investigations are underway. 

Supplier with highest preferential points not 
selected leading to understatement in irregular 
expenditure  

2018/2019 Irregular expenditure register has been 
updated.  The investigations are underway. 

Identified Fruitless and wasteful which was 
disclosed in the AFS was not reported to the 
relevant Treasury. 

2018/2019 The UIF&W updated register is submitted to 
Provincial Treasury on a monthly basis. 

The department did not report irregular 
expenditure which was disclosed in the AFS. 

2018/2019 Finance to provide POE as a proof of 
submission. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

No monthly reporting of irregular expenditure to 
Provincial Treasury. 

2018/2019 The Treasury guideline on treatment of 
irregular expenditure is implemented.  The 
irregular expenditure is reported on monthly 
basis.  SCM to provide proof of submission to 
the Provincial Treasury. 

Management failed to submit the information 
requested by AGSA timeously leading to limitation 
of audit scope and misstatement of irregular 
expenditures. 

2018/2019 The files are kept in a numerical order. 

Management failed to ensure that the deliverables 
agreed on with the suppliers are consistent with 
the service required leading to understatement of 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

2018/2019 Management report fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure to the Accounting Officer. 
 
The filling system is reviewed and its done in a 
numerical order. 

Controls in place to ensure the timeous 
submission of information are not effective 
leading to non-compliance with SCM Rules & 
Regulations and limitation of audit scope. 

2018/2019 The files are currently kept in a numerical 
order.  Risk Management has verified the 
system. 

Sub-contractors appointed before the Director-
General accept and sign off the proposal in with 
the signed MSLA between the OOP and NEPO 
Data Dynamics leading to irregular expenditure. 

2018/2019 All cases under NEPO have been classified as 
irregular and investigations are underway. 

Management failed to put in controls to ensure 
that the pricing structure and Consultancy fees to 
be charged by  NEPO  for  the 12 Transformation 
projects is managed  in the manner that promotes 
economic efficiency. 

2018/2019 All cases under NEPO are being classified as 
irregular and are under investigations. 

Non-involvement of SITA in the ICT 
transformation managed through NEPO in 
compliance with the SITA Act. 

2018/2019 All SITA related contracts are now procured 
through SITA.  SCM to provide a sample of 
procurements processed through SITA. 

The lease Contracts of identified officials 
submitted for audit shows inconsistencies with the 
lease register leading to limitation of audit scope. 
(Vodacom).  

2018/2019 Management to provide POE on the progress 
against the investigation and on submission of 
the cell phone policy strengthening to the 
Accounting Officer 

Controls in place to ensure the timeous 
submission of information are not effective 
leading to non-compliance to the applicable 
legislation (lease agreements). 

2018/2019 SCM to provide contract lease register and 
proof of leases record keeping. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Controls in place to ensure the timeous 
submission of information are not effective 
leading to non-compliance to the applicable 
legislation (Movable Assets). 

2018/2019 Monthly reconciliation is conducted on monthly 
basis and the asset register is updated.  

Effective controls are not in place to ensure that 
complete, relevant and accurate information is 
accessible and available within reasonable time 
leading to limitation of audit scope and non-
compliance. (TNA Media). 

2018/2019 The filing system was revised and the filing of 
documentation is done in numerical order. Risk 
Management Office performed verification of 
the information provided. 

Effective controls not in place to ensure that 
complete, relevant and accurate information is 
accessible and available within reasonable time 
leading to limitation of audit scope  and non-
compliance. (Payments Vouchers). 

2018/2019 The current filing system has been revised and 
filing of documentation in numerical order 

Labour Relations indicator resulting in 
overstatement of monthly interventions provided 
to Departments towards achievement of MPAT 
Level 3 in Labour Relations & Performance 
(Programme 2). 

2018/2019 Following the review of the indicator in 
question from monthly interventions to two 
interventions per quarter, management 
effectively and efficiently monitored the 
performance with regard to the revised 
indicator and the performance reporting 
thereof. 

Monthly interventions provided to Departments 
towards achievement of MPAT Level 3 in 
Employee Health & Wellness Performance it's 
overstated (Programme 2). 

2018/2019 Following the review of the indicator from 
monthly interventions to two interventions per 
quarter, management was able to effectively 
and efficiently monitor the performance of the 
unit including its reporting to ensure that 
actual performance was recorded on the 
system. 

Reporting of the accuracy and completeness of 
the number of sites across the province migrated 
to broadband network infrastructure  is 
understated  

2018/2019   

The amount charged is incorrectly calculated in 
accordance with the tax legislation resulting in 
overstatement of the POC Journal for transfers 
and subsidies. 

2018/2019 A general journal was passed to reduce 
expenditure with the VAT amount. Recovery 
process is still underway (Denel). 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Controls over performance reporting are not 
appropriately designed to address prior year 
findings on Programme 2 and 3 leading to 
material misstatements  

2018/2019 The responsible Chief Directorate:  Corporate 
Management Services. Directorate: Strategic 
Management. 
 
The performance information is validated by 
Strategic Management Directorate for 
completeness and accuracy on a quarterly 
basis upon submission by all Programmes. 
 
Performance review sessions are held to 
review reported information against POE and 
corrective actions are taken.   

Internal control deficiencies  identified  during the 
course of audit 

2018/2019 Records management controls in place.  
Finance Chief Directorate reviewed records 
keeping. 

Inadequate control deficiencies  to effectively  
address prior year material misstatements in the 
following items: 
-Goods and services 
- Irregular expenditure 
- Commitments 
- Accruals and payables not recognised 

2018/2019 4 officials contracted for a period of 6 months 
at Deputy Director level towards ensuring 
mitigation of control deficiencies leading to 
material misstatements on financial 
statements. Compliance on all payments 
vouchers from 01/04/2018 to date was verified 
for compliance including identification of 
irregular expenditure transactions. 

Outdated policy procedures with the PERSAL user 
account management policy last approved March 
2013 leading to: 
 
User access rights reviews not performed by the 
system controller. 
 
Activity reviews of system controller’s for 
personnel and salaries not performed by the 
departmental controller. 
 
Failure to review and update user account 
management policy might result in a policy that is 
not aligned to the department’s current ICT 
environment and processes. 

2018/2019  The SOP's on have been submitted for 
consideration and approval. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Administrator amending PERSAL user account 
without completed authorised forms which might 
result in the users being issued with functions that 
are not aligned with their job responsibilities and 
could result in inappropriate or unauthorised 
access and opportunity for misuse or 
inappropriate disclosure of sensitive data. 

2018/2019 The PERSAL rule is also that a user is not is 
restricted (system access security) to perform 
multiple function. 

Inadequate segregation of duties on PERSAL with 
the controller likely to perform unauthorised 
transactions which may include password resets, 
rights modifications and deactivate users on the 
system. 

2018/2019 Finance: Salaries and Department Persal 
Controllers appointed. Department and 
Salaries PERSAL controller’s appointment 
letters to be drawn and approved by the 
relevant authority. 

 Inadequate implementation of user access 
procedure and lack of user access rights reviews 
for the  Basic Accounting System (BAS) 

2018/2019 Management reviewed and updated the  BAS 
controller policy for user access  rights , and 
the policy is implemented and reporting is 
done on regular basis  

BAS amendment of user profiles without the 
completion of forms which might results in 
issuance of users with the functions that are not 
alignment with their job responsibilities.   
 
This could result in users having inappropriate 
and/or unauthorised access and thus providing an 
opportunity for misuse or inappropriate disclosure 
of sensitive data. 

2018/2019 Management reviewed and updated the BAS 
controller policy for user access rights . Policy  
implemented and reporting is done on a 
regular basis  

Inadequate BAS termination process 
implementation as the service and may lead to 
these user profiles being utilised to perform 
unauthorised activities and thereby compromise 
systems and data integrity. 

2018/2019 The official’s personnel file was transferred to 
the receiving Department upon termination of 
service.   
The Office ensures prior termination or 
transfer a report is submitted to the BAS 
System Controller as part of the user 
termination process.  Evidence of recent 
terminations is attached. 

Lack of appropriate access management to data 
centres likely to result in the inability to identify 
any unauthorised access which may lead to the 
tempering with critical data centre resources. 

2018/2019  1. Manual registers in the both Data Centres 
implemented. 2. The server Data Centre is 
being locked. 3. Two companies responded 
and a site briefing was held on the 22 January 
2019 for the Biometric system and the CCTV 
cameras. 4 A letter / email to be sent to SCM 
on the progress and way forward. 5. The 
Backup Policy & Standard Operating 
Procedures to be signed by Acting GITO and 
the Administrator before end of January 2019. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Lack of adequate maintenance and 
implementation of environmental controls 

2018/2019 1. DC1 UPS was serviced and the batteries 
replaced. 2. Submission is currently being done 
for the service of the UPS at DC2. 3. Letter 
was written to PWD for the lightening 
protection 4. Letter written to PWD& R for the 
service of the control panel 5. Required signs 
for eating, drinking and smoking is 
implemented  

Unsupported Resource Access Control Facility 
(RACF) mainframe version which impacts the 
security of the mainframe environment negatively 
as IBM is no longer supporting the solution.   
 
The security vulnerabilities in the environment 
cannot be mitigated with patches and this renders 
the systems hosted in the mainframe to possible/ 
potential compromise. 

2018/2019 1. Mainframe Assessment: RFQ sent out in 
December 2018 and one supplier submitted as 
per SCM. RFQ to be resent. 2. Business Case, 
User Requirement Specifications and 
Submission for the procurement sent to the 
Administrator and the CFO for approval. 3. 
Once approved - SCM to commence the 
procurement process. 4. The new mainframe 
envisaged delivery is in March 2019 

Inadequate configuration of the Resource Access 
Control Facility (RACF) Group Tree Structure. 
 

2018/2019 1. Group Tree Structure changed to IBM User. 
Completed. 2. RACF policy review and update 
in progress. 

Lack of adequate process for review of activities 
of user IDs with privilege access leading to the 
mainframe security i.e. Resource Access Control 
Facility (RACF), been inadequately configured. 

2018/2019 1. Activities of User ID's with privilege access 
will be addressed on the commissioning of the 
new mainframe. 

Lack of review of exception/violation reports 
extracted and signoff may lead to inability by 
management to detect and follow-up on previous 
trends in RACF Security procedures and 
Standards. 

2018/2019  1. Lack of system storage on the Mainframe 
for monthly reports to be produced. 2. System 
Storage dependent on the procurement of the 
new mainframe 

Inadequate mainframe configuration settings 
which may lead to unauthorised access to the 
environment and thereby compromise of the 
entire mainframe systems partially or totally. 

2018/2019 1. RACF Policy will be reviewed to include the 
AG findings 

Inappropriate use of started tasks to effectively 
control access to the system. 

2018/2019 1. Consult SITA on their configurations and 
settings. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Lack of adequate management of users’ access on 
RACF (segregation of duties) 

2018/2019 1. Segregation is in place. Completed 2. 
Standard Operating Procedures is in the 
process of being developed 

Lack of sufficient audit evidence for DRP testing 
which may results in departments being unable to 
access the OTP mainframe and transversal 
systems in the event of disaster. 

2018/2019 1. Invitations will be sent to all user 
Departments to participate in forthcoming DRP 
tests conducted by OOP - GITO. 2. 
Correspondence will be kept for record and 
audit purposes.  

Inadequate formulation of a Disaster Recovery 
Plan (DRP) 

2018/2019 1. DRP documents reviewed and aligned to the 
AG's recommendations. 2. DRP document to 
be approved by the Administrator. 

Inadequate formulation of the Business Impact 
Analysis (BIA) and the Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) 

2018/2019 The BIA and BCP documents will be reviewed 
and updated to incorporate the AG's findings 

Inadequate Backup Requirements for the 
mainframe system 

2018/2019 1. Backup and Retention Policy and Procedures 
has been reviewed. 

The CA software license expired since April 2017 
leading to the CA technologies not assisting with 
errors encountered by the OTP. 

2018/2019 1. Annual licenses renewed with the service 
provider for two years. 

Data Restoration tests not performed on the 
Mainframe to ensure that the mainframe 
environment can be restored in 
the event of a disaster. 

2018/2019 1. Data base restoration tests will be 
performed on a test partition. 2. This is 
dependent on refresh of the mainframe. 3. 
Data base restoration tests is done during the 
DRP testing process.  

Backup tapes kept onsite following the expired 
contract with BSF and a new service provider had 
not been appointed in 2017/18 to collect and 
store the backup tapes offsite. 

2018/2019 The new contract with service provider Iron 
Mountain is with senior management. 

Inadequate documented backup process to 
ensure alignment to the current implemented 
process. 
Failure to properly align the implemented 
processes to the defined processes could result in 
inconsistencies and difficulty to determine 
accountability from non-compliance. 

2018/2019 1. Backup Policy and Procedures has been 
reviewed. 
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Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Insufficient Information Security Policy to update 
ICT security to include password and 
authentication configurations due to lack Active 
Directory domain.  

2018/2019 1.  Active Directory will be implemented in the 
2019/2020 and 2020/2021 financial years. 

The ICT Security Policy only made available to 
GITO personnel and not to the rest of the users of 
NWPG. 

2018/2019 1) The Security Policy will be published on the 
NWPG Intranet. 2) The Security Policy 
awareness program will be held in February 
and March 2019 

Failure to ensure adequate management of the 
anti-virus solution may compromise systems and 
data availability and integrity of data hosted on 
respective systems. 

2018/2019 1) The Office of the Premier is implementing 
Active Directory – and the pilot project 
implementation in the Department of Tourism 
is completed. 2) Active Directory will be 
implemented in 6 Departments in the 
2019/2020 financial year and in the 2020/2021 
the other 4 Departments. 4) Business Case 
approved to procure the licenses for antivirus l 
and vulnerability assessment tool. 5) The 
procurement process is with SITA.  

Inadequate implementation of the Patch 
Management Processes to NWPG user 
workstations but with the exception of the server. 

2018/2019 1. Dependent on the implementation of Active 
Directory 

The absence of adequate authentication/ 
authorisation requirements and configurations 
may lead to data been easily accessible to 
unauthorised users and susceptible to 
compromise with an impact on the integrity of 
data and availability. 

2018/2019 1. Dependent on the implementation of Active 
Directory 

Failure to adequately manage the firewall 
processes, may lead to unauthorised changes 
being made without any knowledge of ICT 
management and misuse of operator accounts 
which might give room for network security 
breaches. 

2018/2019 1. Approved Business Case submitted to SITA 
on the 8th May 2018 for the procurement of 
the licenses. 2) GITO staff members are on the 
bid evaluation committee to evaluate the 
Checkpoint Firewall bid with SITA on the 30 
January 2019.  

Inadequate patch management implying  non 
release of new security patches for the product by 
the vendor and thus likely  to contain security 
vulnerabilities.  

2018/2019 1) Dependent on the implementation of Active 
Directory. 2) WSUS is deployed on the servers 

Inadequate configuration settings attributed to 
non-compliance with the operating system 
configuration standard and security hardening 
standards. 

2018/2019 1. Network devices findings addressed. 2) 
Server Administration findings addressed. 

64
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



& & & &
& & & & &

& & & &
!
!

!
!

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse 
opinion and matters of non-compliance 

Financial 
year in 
which it 
1st arose 

Progress made in clearing/resolving the 
matter 

Lack of evidence leading to limitation of audit 
scope that ICT Steering Committee was convened 
as required. 

2018/2019 1. ICT Steering Committee established. 2. First 
meeting held in December 2018. 

10. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT 
!

The internal control and fiscal management unit m s and reports on the post 

audit action plan. 

11. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES 

!

         

   

   

             

              

             

         

   

             

 

      

 

               

              

       management; financial statements; report on pre-

d       audit action plans (both  internal and external). 

T             
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• Key activities and objectives of the internal audit 

   

 Key activities: 

 Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to 

 add value and improve an organization's operations. It helps an organization accomplish its 

 objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 

 effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes. 

 Key objectives: 

 Provide a value add risk based internal audit service to the department. 

 

• Summary of audit work done 

 

For the financial year under review 16 assurance and advisory reports were issued to the 

Department. Work performed was based on a risk based internal audit plan and included 

audits of: risk management; supply chain  management; financial statements; report on pre-

determined objectives; IT governance; and  audit action plans (both internal and external). The 

audit work performed indicated that various deficiencies in internal control, risk management 

and governance processes exist and that this will require improvement on by the Department 

through timely and adequate implementation of agreed upon audit action plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members: 
 

Up to 31 July 2018, term of office expired: 

Name Qualifications Internal 
or 
external 

Role Date 
appointed 

Date 
resigned 

No 
meetings 
attended 

Central Audit Committee   

Mr. M. Mohohlo B.Compt, MBA External Chairperson 1 August 2013  2 

Mr. F. Gondwe Post Graduate 
Diploma in 
Taxation 

External Member 1 August 2013  2 

Ms. P. Mzizi CA(SA) External Member 1 August 2013  2 

Ms. N. Mtebele B.Com, Higher 
Diploma in 
Taxation 

External Member 1 August 2013  2 

Mr. P. Tjie B.Com, PMD External Member 1 August 2013  2 

Cluster Audit Committee   

Ms. P. Mzizi CA(SA) External Chairperson 1 August 2013  2 

Ms. M. Morata B.Proc External Member 1 August 2013  2 

Mr. F. 
Sinthumule 

B.Com, MBA External Member 1 August 2013  2 

Mr. M. 
Mohohlo* 

B.Compt, MBA External Member  1 August 2013  1 

"#$%$&'()!*$+!,&(-.*.-!/(('.01,. 
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From 1 August 2018, new appointed audit committee: 

Name Qualificat
ions 

Internal or 
external 

Role Date appointed Date 
resigned 

No 
meetings 
attended 

Central Audit Committee   

Mr L.Z 
Fihlani 

CA(SA) External Chairperson 1 August 2018  2 

Ms P. Mzizi 

 

CA(SA) External Member 1 August 2018  1 

Mr M. Sass CA(SA) External Member 1 August 2018  1 

Mr P. Tjie B.Com, 
PMD 

External Member 1 August 2018  2 

Mr M. 
Mohohlo* 

B.Compt, 
MBA 

External Member  1 August 2018  1 

Mr A.F 
Sinthumule* 

B.Com, 
MBA 

External Member 1 August 2018  1 

Cluster Audit Committee   

Mr. P. Tjie B.Com, 
PMD 

External Chairperson 1 August 2018  2!

Mr. L. Ally CA(SA) External Member 1 August 2018  2!

Ms. H. 
Moller 

Dip. 
Business 
Managem
ent 

External Member 1 August 2018  2!

Ms. N. 
Mtebele 

B.Com, 
Higher 
Diploma 
in 
Taxation 

External Member 1 August 2018  2!

Mr A.F 
Sinthumule* 

B.Com, 
MBA 

External Member 1 August 2018  1 

"#$%$&'()!*$+!,&(-.*.-!/(('.01,. 
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12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
!

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019. 

Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38 (1) 
(a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  The Audit Committee 
also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, 
has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein, except that we have not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices.  

The Effectiveness of Internal Control 

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments 
conducted in the department revealed certain weaknesses, which were then raised with the 
Department.  

1.  Legislative requirements 
 

The Audit Committee herewith presents its report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019, 

as required by treasury regulation 3.1.13 read with section 77 of the Public Finance 

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999). 

 
2.  Audit Committee Members and Attendance  
 

The Audit Committee should meet at least four times per annum as the Central Audit 

Committee and also four times per annum as the Cluster Audit Committee as per its approved 

terms of reference. During the current year four scheduled meetings and two special meetings 

were held by the Central Audit Committee and four meetings were held by the Cluster Audit 

Committee.  

 

3.  Audit Committee Responsibility  
 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 

38(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and Treasury Regulation 3.1. 

 
The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as 

its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has 

discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

 
4.  The effectiveness of internal control  
 

In line with the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, internal audit provides the Audit 

Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and 
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effective. This is achieved by evaluating internal controls to determine their effectiveness and 

efficiency, and by developing recommendations for enhancement or improvement. The 

accounting officer retains responsibility for implementing such recommendations as per 

Treasury Regulation 3.1.12.  

 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors and report of Auditor General of South Africa 

it was noted that matters were reported indicating material deficiencies in the system of 

internal controls in areas pertaining to financial reporting, compliance with laws and regulations 

and pre-determined objectives.  

 

Through our analysis of audit reports and engagement with the Department we can report that 

the system on internal control for the period under review was not adequate and effective.  

 

A matter of concern for the Audit Committee that has been raised with the department 

continuously is that the department is currently not implementing all internal and external audit 

action plans agreed upon. Based on our interaction with the department we conclude that the 

action plan management system has not been implemented adequately and effectively to 

address internal and external audit findings and the Audit Committee and Internal Audit have 

recommended specific improvements in this regard. 

 

The Audit Committee remains concerned with the slow progress in the finalisation of irregular, 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure. The current status of the implementation of the guideline(s) and 

instruction(s) as issued by National Treasury to resolve irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

is inadequate. 

 

5.  Risk management 

 

The Risk Management Committee has been appointed and is chaired by an independent 

chairperson and advises the accounting officer.  

Based on the quarterly reviews performed, the departmental fraud and risk management 

system is not adequate and effective.  

 

The Audit Committee remains concerned that not all ICT risks are being addressed or 

mitigated. 

 

The Audit Committee is concerned with the capacity of the risk management function which 

will impact service delivery negatively if the situation is not addressed.  
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6.  In-Year Management and Quarterly Reporting 
 

The Provincial Treasury has confirmed that the department has reported to the Treasury as is 

required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999.  The quality of the in-year financial 

performance reporting including interim financial statements are however a concern to the 

Audit Committee. 

  Audit Committee has engaged with management to remedy the shortcomings.  

The Audit Committee has recommended that the department prepare interim financial 

statements that comply with the financial reporting framework (Modified Cash Standard (MCS). 

This will assist in performing reconciliations timeously and in eliminating year-end adjustments. 

 
7.  Evaluation of Financial Statements  
 
 

The Audit Committee has reviewed the draft annual financial statements prepared by the 

department and has advised the accounting officer to ensure that all the review notes and 

comments of Internal Audit and Audit Committee are fully addressed prior to submission of the 

annual financial statements to the Auditor General South Africa.  

 

8.  Evaluation of Annual Report 

 

The Audit Committee has reviewed the draft annual report prepared by the department and 

has advised the accounting officer to ensure that all the review notes and comments of the 

Internal Audit and Audit Committee are fully addressed prior to submission of the annual report 

to the Auditor General South Africa. 

 

The Audit Committee has discussed the external audit outcomes on the reporting on pre-

determined objectives to be included in the annual report with the Auditor General South Africa 

and the Accounting Officer. 

 

9.  Compliance with laws and regulations 

The Audit Committee is concerned with the status of compliance with laws and regulations.  If 

the department does not implement an adequate and effective compliance framework and 

system, non compliance and irregular expenditure will continue to occur. 
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10.  Internal Audit  

 

The accounting officer is obliged, in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, to 

ensure that the entity has a system of internal audit under the control and direction of the Audit 

Committee. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function has properly 

discharged its functions and responsibilities during the year under review. 

 

  The Audit Committee also notes that the deficiencies in the risk management system 

mentioned above impact on the implementation of the risk based audit approach. 

 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function maintains an effective internal 

quality assurance programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity and that as 

determined during the external quality assessment review, that a generally “conforms rating” 

can be applied to the internal audit work and the term “Conforms with the International 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing” may be used by the function. 

 

11.  Auditor General South Africa 

 

We have reviewed the department’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous 

year and based on the interaction with the department and the internal audit reports, the 

committee is not satisfied that all matters have been adequately addressed.  

 

The Audit Committee is not aware of any unresolved issues with respect to the current audit.  

 

The Audit Committee concurs with the Auditor General South Africa's opinion on the annual financial 
statements. 

 
12.  General 

 

Signed on behalf of the Cluster Audit Committee by: 

      

      M.P.Tjie 
Chairperson of the                        .................................. 
Cluster Audit Committee              M.P TJIE       
                                   Date    29 October 2019           
 

 

!!

71
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



72
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

PART D:
Human Resource

Management



73
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

PART D:
Human Resource

Management



& & & &
& & & & &

& & & &
!
!

!
!

1. INTRODUCTION  
 

This part of the annual report provides a synopsis of the human resources management in the Office 
of the Premier. It focuses on Organizational Development, Human Resources Administration, Human 
Resources Development and Performance Management as well as Labour Relations and Employee 
Health and Wellness. 

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES  
 

The Office of the Premier has an approved organizational structure with a total of eight hundred and 
twenty one (821) positions. Of these approved positions seven hundred and twenty (720) were filled 
whilst one hundred and two (102) were vacant as at the 31st March 2019.  Of the fifty five (55) senior 
management positions, forty nine (49) were filled whilst six (6) were vacant. With regard to 
performance management 96% of senior managers signed their performance agreement. A total of 
seven hundred and six (706) training interventions were undertaken whilst twenty three (23) cases of 
misconduct and seventeen (17) grievances were reported. The Office has conducted two hundred 
and eighty (280) HIV Voluntary Counselling and Testing and the Human Resources Management 
attained the rating of 3 on Management Assessment Performance Tool (MPAT) 1.8 which is an 
improvement from 2.9 from MPAT 1.7. 

 

3. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS  
 
3.1. Personnel related expenditure 

Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
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Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Salary band Personnel 

expenditure (R’000) 
% of total 
personnel 

cost 

No. of 
employees 

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000) 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) R4 593 412,85  1 27 R 170 126,00 

Skilled (level 3-5) R28 162 808,80  9 117 R 240 708,00 

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 

R128 141 854,01  39 380 R 337 215,00 

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 

R98 108 702,62  30 141 R 695 806,00 

Senior and Top management 
(levels 13-16) 

R51 272 422,40  16 44 R 1 165 282,00 

Contract (Levels 1-2) R2 880 767,97  1 39 R 73 866,00 

Contract (Levels 3-5) R669 224,99  0 2 R 334 612,00 

Contract (Levels 6-8) R510 908,51  0 1 R 510 909,00 

Contract (Levels 9-12) R2 717 168,76  1 6 R 452 861,00 

Contract (Levels 13-16) R10 505 381,46  3 8 R 1 313 173,00 

Periodical Remuneration R0,00  0   R 0,00 

Abnormal Appointment R184 000,00  0   R 0,00 

Total R 327 746 652,37 100 765 R 428 427,00 

!
!

Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the 
period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Salaries Overtime  Home Owners 
Allowance 

 Medical Aid  
 
Programme Amount (R’000 Salari

es as 
a % of 
perso
nnel 

costs  

Amount 
(R’000) 

Overti
me as 
a % of 
perso
nnel 

costs  

Amount (R’000) HOA 
as a 
% of 

perso
nnel 

costs  

Amount (R’000) Medical 
aid as a 

% of 
personn
el costs  

PROGRAMME 
1:ADMINISTRA
TION                  R 55 180 255,66 69 R 429997,15 1 R 1 851612,64 2 R 3 435672,68 4 

PROGRAMME 
2:INSTITUTION
AL 
DEVELOPMEN
T       R 70 259 485,92 72 R 618524,12 1 R 1 724 014,40 2 R 3 139569,25 3 

PROGRAMME 
3:POLICY AND 
GOVERNANCE           R 106 861 854,71 72 R 42 011,19 0 R 4 890 715,48 3 R 9 936809,08 7 

Total R 232 301 596,29 71 R 1 090532,46 0 R 8 466 342,52 3 R 16 512051,01 5 
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Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the 
period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Salaries Overtime 
 

Home Owners 
Allowance 

Medical Aid  
Salary band 

Amount 
(R’000 

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs  

Amount 
(R’000) 

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs  

Amount 
(R’000) 

HOA as a 
% of 

personnel 
costs  

Amount 
(R’000) 

Medical 
aid as a 

% of 
personnel 

costs  

Skilled (level 
1-2)   

R 2 767 
819,43 60 

R 4 
185,10 0 

R 314 
587,82 7 

R 882 
391,50 19 

Skilled (level 
3-5)   

R 19 436 
098,82 69 

R 164 
572,48 1 

R 1 445 
040,80 5 

R 2 398 
088,25 9 

Highly skilled 
production 
(levels 6-8) 

R 91 709 
565,81 72 

R 700 
645,58 1 

R 4 991 
312,76 4 

R 10 011 
745,87 8 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(levels 9-12 

R 71 644 
007,01 73 

R 217 
994,24 0 

R 1 470 
628,14 2 

R 2 688 
219,43 3 

Senior 
management 
(level 13-16) 

R 34 365 
687,63 67   0 

R 244 
773,00 1 

R 525 
257,96 1 

Contract 
(Levels 1-2) 

R 2 768 
102,58 96 

R 3 
135,06 0   0   0 

Contract 
(Levels 3-5) 

R 453 
294,10 68   0   0   0 

Contract 
(Levels 6-8) 

R 301 
069,31 59   0   0   0 

Contract 
(Levels 9-12) 

R 1 839 
765,17 68   0   0   0 

Contract 
(Levels 13-
16) 

R 6 832 
186,43 65   0   0 

R 6 
348,00 0 

Periodical 
Remuneration   0   0   0   0 

Abnormal 
Appointment 

R 184 
000,00 100   0   0   0 

Total R 232 
301 

596,29 
71 

R 1 090 
532,46 

0 
R 8 466 
342,52 

3 
R 16 
512 

051,01 
5 
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3.2. Employment and Vacancies 

Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2019 
Programme Number of 

posts on 
approved 

establishment 

Number of 
posts filled 

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment 

'()*(+,,-!
$.+/,01023(+30)1!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!! $"<! $:9! $9! $"!

'()*(+,,-!
%.012303430)1+5!
/-6-5)',-13!!!!!!! $=%! $;%! $;! $;!

'()*(+,,-!&.')5078!
+1/!*)6-(1+17-!!!!!!!!!!! 9:$! 9#9! $#! $%!

Total 821 720 12 45 

 
 
Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2019 

Salary band Number of 
posts on 
approved 

establishment 

Number of 
posts filled 

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment 

Lower skilled ( 1-2) 43 37 14 39 

Skilled(3-5) 131 125 5  - 

Highly skilled 
production (6-8) 

418 366 12  - 

Highly skilled 
supervision (9-12) 

174 143 18 5 

Senior management 
(13-16) 

55 49 11 1 

Total  821 720 12 45 

 
 
Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2019 

Critical occupation Number of 
posts on 
approved 

establishment 

Number of 
posts filled 

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
RELATED                             143 116 19 5 

ADVOCATES                                          4 3 25 -  

CLEANERS IN 
OFFICES 
WORKSHOPS 
HOSPITALS ETC.       45 39 13  - 
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Critical occupation Number of 
posts on 
approved 

establishment 

Number of 
posts filled 

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
WORKERS                      293 268 9  - 

COMPUTER 
PROGRAMMERS.                              3 2 33  - 

COMPUTER SYSTEM 
DESIGNERS AND 
ANALYSTS.            1 1 0  - 

FINANCIAL AND 
RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS                4 2 50  - 

FINANCIAL CLERKS 
AND CREDIT 
CONTROLLERS            7 6 14  - 

HEAD OF 
DEPARTMENT/CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER         1 1 0  - 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
& ORGANISAT 
DEVELOPM & 
RELATE PROF 15 13 13  - 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
RELATED                     5 4 20  - 

LANGUAGE 
PRACTITIONERS 
INTERPRETERS & 
OTHER COMMUN 6 2 67  - 

LIBRARIANS AND 
RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS               1 1 0  - 

LIBRARY MAIL AND 
RELATED CLERKS                    7 6 14  - 

MESSENGERS 
PORTERS AND 
DELIVERERS                  14 12 14  - 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRAT & 
RELATED CLERKS 
AND ORGANISERS  47 45 4 39 
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Critical occupation Number of 
posts on 
approved 

establishment 

Number of 
posts filled 

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
POLICY AND 
RELATED OFFICERS   65 51 22  - 

OTHER 
INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
PERSONNEL.            69 65 6  - 

OTHER 
OCCUPATIONS                                  1 1 0  - 

PROFESSIONAL 
NURSE                                 1 1 0  - 

SECRETARIES & 
OTHER KEYBOARD 
OPERATING CLERKS      32 30 6  - 

SECURITY 
OFFICERS                                  4 4 0  - 

SENIOR MANAGERS                                    53 47 11 1 

Total 821 720 12 45 

 
Notes 
(

• The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table. 
 
• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation –  

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or 
anticipated in the future, either because such skilled persons are not available or they 
are available but do not meet the applicable employment criteria; 

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science 
or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by a prolonged course or study 
and/or specialised instruction; 

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion 
and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and 

(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or 
retain the services of employees.   
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3.3. Filling of SMS Posts 

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members 
of the Senior Management Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and 
filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps 
taken. 

Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2019 
SMS Level Total 

number of 
funded 

SMS posts  

Total 
number of  
SMS posts 

filled  

% of SMS 
posts filled  

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant  

% of SMS posts 
vacant 

Salary Level 16 2 2 100  - 0 

Salary Level 15 6 6 100  - 0 

Salary Level 14 14 11 79 3 21,4 

Salary Level 13 34 31 91 3 8,8 

Total 56 50 89,3 6 10,7 

 
 
Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2018 

SMS Level Total 
number of 

funded 
SMS posts  

Total 
number of  
SMS posts 

filled  

% of SMS 
posts filled  

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant  

% of SMS posts 
vacant  

Salary Level 16 2 1 50 1 50 

Salary Level 15 6 6 100  - 0 

Salary Level 14 14 11 79 3 21,4 

Salary Level 13 34 31 91 3 8,8 

Total 56 49 87,5 7 12,5 

 
Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Advertising Filling of Posts 

SMS Level 
Number of vacancies per 

level advertised in 6 
months of becoming 

vacant 

Number of vacancies per 
level filled in 6 months of 

becoming vacant 

Number of vacancies per 
level not filled in 6 months 

but filled in 12 months  

Director-General/ 
Head of 
Department 

!#! #! #!

Salary Level 16 #! #! #!

Salary Level 15 !$! $! #!

Salary Level 14 "! "! #!

Salary Level 13 $! $! "!

Total %! %! "!
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Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 
6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 
2019 

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months 

There was an acting appointment in the position of Chief Director: Service Delivery and Intervention following 
delays in the approval for permanent replacement was delayed. 
 
 

!

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months 

All positions advertised were filled within 12 months. 
 
 

 
Notes 
!
• In terms of the Public Service Regulations Chapter 1, Part VII C.1A.3, departments must indicate 

good cause or reason for not having complied with the filling of SMS posts within the prescribed 
timeframes. 

 
 
Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS 
posts within 12 months for the period 1 April 20YY and 31 March 2019 

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months 

There was an acting appointment in the position of Chief Director: Service Delivery and Intervention following 
delays in the approval for permanent replacement was delayed. 
 
 

!

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months 

Positions were filled within six months of advertisement 
 
 

 
Notes 
!

• In terms of the Public Service Regulations Chapter 1, Part VII C.1A.2, departments must indicate 
good cause or reason for not having complied with the filling of SMS posts within the prescribed 
timeframes. In the event of non-compliance with this regulation, the relevant executive authority or 
head of department must take appropriate disciplinary steps in terms of section 16A(1) or (2) of 
the Public Service Act. 
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3.4. Job Evaluation 

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job 
in his or her organisation. In terms of the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must 
be evaluated before they are filled. The following table summarises the number of jobs that were 
evaluated during the year under review. The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that 
were upgraded or downgraded.  

!
Table 3.4.1 Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded Salary band Number of 
posts on 
approved 

establishment 

Number 
of Jobs 

Evaluated 

% of 
posts 

evaluated 
by salary 

bands 

Number % of  
posts 

evaluated 

Number % of  
posts 

evaluated 

Lower Skilled 
(Levels1-2) 

43 0 0% 0   0 0 0% 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 131 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 

Highly skilled 
production (Levels 
6-8) 

418 1 0.2% 0 0 1 0.2% 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

174 9         5.2% 0 0 1 0.6% 

Senior 
Management 
Service Band A 

34 2 5.9% 0 0 0 0% 

Senior 
Management 
Service Band B 

14 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 

Senior 
Management 
Service Band C 

5 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 

Senior 
Management 
Service Band D 

2 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 

Total 821 12 1.46% 0 0 2 0.24% 

!
The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded 
due to their post being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts 
upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the 
posts upgraded could also be vacant. 

 
Table 3.4.2  Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded 
for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019  - NONE 

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total 
Female 0 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 0 

 

Employees with a disability 0 
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The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade 
determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case. 

 
Table 3.4.3  Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by   
occupation for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 - NONE 

Occupation Number of 
employees 

Job evaluation 
level 

Remuneration 
level 

Reason for deviation 

Nil 0 0 0 0 
Nil 0 0 0 0 

Nil 0 0 0 0 

Nil 0 0 0 0 
"#$%&!'()*+,!#-!+).&#/++0!12#0+!0%&%,3+0!+45++6+6!$2+!&+7+&!6+$+,)3'+6!*/!8#*!
+7%&(%$3#'!

9!

:+,5+'$%;+!#-!$#$%&!+).&#/+6! 9!
!

 
 The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability. 

 
Table 3.4.4  Profile of employees who have  salary levels higher than those determined by job 
evaluation for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 - NONE 

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total 
Female 0 0 0 0 0 

Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 0 

!
Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0 

!
!

Notes 
!

• If there were no cases where the salary levels were higher than those determined by job evaluation, 
keep the heading and replace the table with the following: 

Total number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determine by job 
evaluation 

None 

 
3.5. Employment Changes 

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates 
provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables 
provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes 
below). 
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Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Salary band Number of 

employees at 
beginning of period-1 

April 20YY 

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
department 

Terminations 
and transfers 

out of the 
department  

Turnover rate 

Lower skilled ( Levels 1-2) 29 2 4 14 

Skilled (Levels3-5) 120 1 3 3 

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8) 

383 5 9 2 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 

144 6 11 8 

Senior Management Service 
Bands A 

29 2 1  3 

Senior Management Service 
Bands B 

11 1  1 9 

Senior Management Service 
Bands C 

2     0 

Senior Management Service 
Bands D 

1 1 1 100 

Contracts 25 62 99 396 

Periodical Remuneration       0 

Abnormal Appointment 18 1 18 100 

Total 762 81 147 19 

!

Table 3.5.2!!Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 
2019 

Critical occupation Number of 
employees at 
beginning of 

period-April 20YY 

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
department 

Terminations 
and transfers 

out of the 
department 

Turnover rate 

ADMINISTRATIVE RELATED                             347 11 16 5 

ADVOCATES                                          3 -  -  0 

CLEANERS IN OFFICES 
WORKSHOPS HOSPITALS ETC.       43 2 6 14 

COMMUNICATION AND 
INFORMATION RELATED              7  - 2 29 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
WORKERS                      27 -  1 4 

COMPUTER PROGRAMMERS.                              3 -  -  0 

ENGINEERING SCIENCES 
RELATED                       2  -  - 0 

FINANCE AND ECONOMICS 
RELATED                      4  - -  0 

FINANCIAL AND RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS                5 1 2  40 

FINANCIAL CLERKS AND 
CREDIT CONTROLLERS            7  - 1  14 
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Critical occupation Number of 
employees at 
beginning of 

period-April 20YY 

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
department 

Terminations 
and transfers 

out of the 
department 

Turnover rate 

HEAD OF DEPARTMENT/CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER         1 1 1 100 

HUMAN RESOURCES & 
ORGANISAT DEVELOPM & 
RELATE PROF 14 1 1  7 

HUMAN RESOURCES CLERKS                             7 2 2 29 

HUMAN RESOURCES RELATED                            9  1  1 11 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
RELATED                     6  -  - 0 

LANGUAGE PRACTITIONERS 
INTERPRETERS & OTHER 
COMMUN 2  - -  0 

LIBRARIANS AND RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS               1  - -  0 

LIBRARY MAIL AND RELATED 
CLERKS                    4 1 1 25 

MESSENGERS PORTERS AND 
DELIVERERS                  11 1 1 9 

MOTOR VEHICLE DRIVERS                              2  - -  0 

OTHER ADMINISTRAT & 
RELATED CLERKS AND 
ORGANISERS  63 42 75 119 

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE 
POLICY AND RELATED 
OFFICERS   40 3 4 10 

OTHER INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY PERSONNEL.            56 1  - 0 

OTHER OCCUPATIONS                                  19 2 19 100 

PHOTOGRAPHIC 
LITHOGRAPHIC AND RELATED 
WORKERS      1 -  -  0 

PROFESSIONAL NURSE                                 1  - -  0 

SECRETARIES & OTHER 
KEYBOARD OPERATING 
CLERKS      31 3 2 7 

SECURITY OFFICERS                                  4     0 

SENIOR MANAGERS                                    42 9 12 29 

TOTAL 762 81 147 19 
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Notes 
!

• The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table. 
 
• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation –  

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or 
anticipated in the future, either because such skilled persons are not available or they 
are available but do not meet the applicable employment criteria; 

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science 
or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by a prolonged course or study 
and/or specialised instruction; 

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion 
and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and 

(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or 
retain the services of employees. 

  
The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the department.  
 
Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Termination Type   Number % of Total Resignations 
Death 2 1 

Resignation 18 13 

Expiry of contract 113 81 

Dismissal – operational changes - - 

Dismissal – misconduct 1 1 

Dismissal – inefficiency  - - 

Discharged due to ill-health   

Retirement 5 4 

Transfer to other Public Service Departments 8 3 

Other - - 
Total 147 100 

Total number of employees who left as a % 
of total employment 

- 19 

 
 
Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Occupation Employees 
1 April 
20YY 

Promotions 
to another 
salary level 

Salary level 
promotions as 

a % of 
employees by 

occupation 

Progressions 
to another 

notch within a 
salary level 

Notch 
progression as a 
% of employees 
by occupation 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
RELATED                             347 4 1 299 86 

ADVOCATES                                          3 -  0 3 100 

CLEANERS IN 
OFFICES 
WORKSHOPS 43  - 0 12 28 
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Occupation Employees 
1 April 
20YY 

Promotions 
to another 
salary level 

Salary level 
promotions as 

a % of 
employees by 

occupation 

Progressions 
to another 

notch within a 
salary level 

Notch 
progression as a 
% of employees 
by occupation 

HOSPITALS ETC.       

COMMUNICATION 
AND INFORMATION 
RELATED              7  - 0 6 86 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
WORKERS                      27  - 0 9 33 

COMPUTER 
PROGRAMMERS.                              3  - 0 -  0 

ENGINEERING 
SCIENCES RELATED                       2  - 0 1 50 

FINANCE AND 
ECONOMICS 
RELATED                      4  - 0 3 75 

FINANCIAL AND 
RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS                5  - 0 2 40 

FINANCIAL CLERKS 
AND CREDIT 
CONTROLLERS            7  - 0 2 29 

HEAD OF 
DEPARTMENT/CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER         1  - 0  - 0 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES & 
ORGANISAT 
DEVELOPM & 
RELATE PROF 14  - 0 8 57 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 
CLERKS                             7  - 0 6 86 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 
RELATED                            9 1 11 7 78 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
RELATED                     6  - 0 6 100 

LANGUAGE 
PRACTITIONERS 
INTERPRETERS & 
OTHER COMMUN 2  - 0 1 50 

LIBRARIANS AND 
RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS               1  - 0 1 100 
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Occupation Employees 
1 April 
20YY 

Promotions 
to another 
salary level 

Salary level 
promotions as 

a % of 
employees by 

occupation 

Progressions 
to another 

notch within a 
salary level 

Notch 
progression as a 
% of employees 
by occupation 

LIBRARY MAIL AND 
RELATED CLERKS                    4  - 0 4 100 

MESSENGERS 
PORTERS AND 
DELIVERERS                  11  - 0 5 46 

MOTOR VEHICLE 
DRIVERS                              2  - 0 1 50 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRAT & 
RELATED CLERKS 
AND ORGANISERS  63  - 0 35 56 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
POLICY AND 
RELATED OFFICERS   40 3 8 28 70 

OTHER 
INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
PERSONNEL.            56  - 0 36 64 

OTHER 
OCCUPATIONS                                  19  - 0  - 0 

PHOTOGRAPHIC 
LITHOGRAPHIC AND 
RELATED WORKERS      1  - 0 1 100 

PROFESSIONAL 
NURSE                                 1 -  0  - 0 

SECRETARIES & 
OTHER KEYBOARD 
OPERATING CLERKS      31  - 0 17 55 

SECURITY 
OFFICERS                                  4  - 0 4 100 

SENIOR MANAGERS                                    42 2 5 14 33 

TOTAL 762 10 1 511 67 

 

88
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



& & & &
& & & & &

& & & &
!
!

!
!

Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Salary Band Employees 

1 April 
20YY 

Promotions 
to another 
salary level 

Salary bands 
promotions 

as a % of 
employees 
by salary 

level 

Progressions 
to another 

notch within 
a salary level 

Notch progression as a % 
of 

employees by salary 
bands 

Lower skilled ( 
Levels 1-2) 

29  - 0 12 41 

Skilled (Levels3-
5) 

120  - 0 53 44 

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6-8) 

383 3 1 331 86 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

144 5 4 96 67 

Senior 
Management 
(Level 13-16) 

43 2 5 18 42 

Contracts 25 -  0 1 4 

Periodical 
Remuneration    - 0 -  0 

Abnormal 
Appointment 18  - 0  - 0 

Total 762 10 1 511 67 

 

3.6. Employment Equity  

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 
occupational categories as on 31 March 2019 

Male Female Occupational 
category African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers 

30  - -  1 11 -  1 1 44 

Professionals 72 2 1 4 55 1   1 136 

Technicians and 
associate 
professionals 

156 3  - -  220 4   2 385 

Clerks  57 -   -  - 83 3 1 -  144 

Service and 
sales workers 

2  -  -  - 2  -  -  - 4 

Skilled 
agriculture and 
fishery workers 

 - - - - - - - - 
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Male Female Occupational 
category African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Craft and related 
trades workers 

1  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1 

Plant and 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers 

2  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2 

Elementary 
occupations 

 - -  - - - -  

Total 331 5 2 5 408 8 2 4 765 

Employees with 
disabilities 

9 -   - 1 6  -  -  - 16 

  
 
Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 
occupational bands as on 31 March 2019 

Male Female Occupational 
band African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Political Office 
bearers 

1  - - -  -  -  -  -  1 

 Top 
Management  

6  -  -  - 1  -  -  - 7 

Senior 
Management  

26 1   3 12  - 1 1 44 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and 
mid-management 55 1 1 1 29 1  - 1 89 

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

179 3  - 1 250 4  - 2 439 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 
decision making 

39  - 1  - 75 3 1  - 119 

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making 

25  -  - -  41    - -  66 

Total 331 5 2 5 408 8 2 4 765 
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Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

Male Female Occupational 
band African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

EXCEPTION - 
POLITICAL 
OFFICE BEARERS                                                                                

 
1  -  -  -    -  -  - 1 

NON-
PERMANENT 
WORKER                                                                                                

 
 -  -  -  - 1  -  -  - 1 

Top 
Management 

2  -  -  - 1  -  -  - 3 

Senior 
Management 

5  -  -  - 1  -  -  - 6 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and 
mid-management 

2  -  -  - 6  -  -  - 8 

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

5  -  -  - 3  -  -  - 8 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 
decision making 

1  -  -  - 4  -  -  - 5 

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making 

23  -  -  - 23  -  -  - 46 

Total 39 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 78 

Employees with 
disabilities 

1  - -  -  -  -  -  -  1 

TRANSFERS TO 
THE 
DEPARTMENT  

 

2  -  -  - 1  -  -  - 3 

TOTAL 
INCLUDING 
TRANSFERS TO 
DEPARTMENT 

 

41 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 81 

!
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Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 
Male Female Occupational band 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Top Management 1  - -  -  -  -  -  - 1 

Senior Management 1  -  -  - -   -  - -  1 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

2  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents 

2  -  -  - 4  -  -  - 6 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

- - - - - - - - - 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

- - - - - - - -  

Total 6 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 10 

Employees with 
disabilities 

        0 

!
Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

Male Female Occupational band 
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

EXCEPTION - 
POLITICAL OFFICE 
BEARERS                                                                               

1 - - - - - - - 1 

NON-PERMANENT 
WORKER                                                                                                

 
6 1  -  - 10 1  -  - 18 

Top Management 1  -  -  - 2  -  -  - 3 

Senior Management 6  -  -  - 1  -  -  - 7 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

3 1  - 1 4  -  -  - 9 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents 

9  -  -  - 6  -  -  - 15 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

3  -  -  - 4  - -   - 7 
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Male Female Occupational band 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

29  - -   - 50 -   - -  79 

Total  58 2 0 1 77 1 0 0 139 

Employees with 
Disabilities 

2  -  -  -  - -  -   - 2 

TRANSFER OF A 
PERSON TO 
ANOTHER PERSAL 
BUREAU      

 -  -  -  - 2  -  -  - 2 

INTER 
DEPARTMENTAL 
TRANSFER (WITHIN 
NWPG) 

2  - -   - 4  -  -  - 6 

TOTAL INCLUDING 
TRANSFERS OUT 
OF PERSAL 

60 2 0 1 83 1 0 0 147 

 
Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

Male Female Disciplinary action 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

WRITTEN WARNING  3 - - - 1 - - - 4 

FINAL WRITTEN 
WARNING  

3 - - - - - - - 3 

SUSPENSION - - - - 1 - - - 1 

 
Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Male Female Occupational 
category African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Legislators, senior 
officials and 
managers 

"! #! %! %! &! %! #! #! #"!

Professionals '(! #! #! #! )(! )! #! $! #%'!

Technicians and 
associate 
professionals 

*#! $! %! #! (%! &! %! +! #''!

Clerks  )'! %! #! %! )(! )! %! #! &(!

Service and sales 
workers 

%! %! %! %! %! %! %! %! %!

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

%! %! %! %! %! %! %! %! %!

Craft and related 
trades workers 

%! %! %! %! %! %! %! %! %!

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers 

%! %! %! %! %! %! %! %! %!
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Male Female Occupational 
category African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Total 

Elementary 
occupations 

')! %! %! %! &%! %! %! %! #$)!

Total ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! +(%!

Employees with 
disabilities 

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! #&!

!

!""#$%$&%'(#)*# +,%# -.-#$/(+# 0)10"/2%# 312# (451#6%'*)'$310%# 35'%%$%1+(#74+,41# (6%04*40# +4$%*'3$%(8# 91*)'$3+4)1#
'%53'2415# +,%# (451415# )*# 6%'*)'$310%# 35'%%$%1+(# &:# -.-# $%$&%'(;# +,%# '%3()1(# *)'# 1)+# 0)$6":415# 74+,41# +,%#
6'%(0'4&%2#+4$%*'3$%(#312#24(046"413':#(+%6(#+3<%1#4(#6'%(%1+%2#,%'%8#

Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2018 
SMS Level Total number of 

funded SMS 
posts 

Total number of  
SMS members 

Total number of  
signed 

performance 
agreements 

Signed performance 
agreements as % of 
total number of SMS 

members 

Director-General/ 
Head of 
Department 

1 1 1 100% 

Salary Level 16 1 1 1 100% 
Salary Level 15 6 4 3 75% 

Salary Level 14 14 11 10 91% 

Salary Level 13 34 34 32 94% 
Total 56 51 49 96% 

 
Notes 
!

• In the event of a National or Provincial election occurring within the first three months of a 
financial year all members of the SMS must conclude and sign their performance agreements for 
that financial year within three months following the month in which the elections took place. For 
example if elections took place in April, the reporting date in the heading of the table above 
should change to 31 July 2018. 

 
Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 
31 March 2019 

Reasons  
The  was change in  the leadership on Premier support, therefore SMS members working in Premier support couldn’t 
conclude their Performance Agreement for 2018-19 cycle on prescribed time by Department of Public Service and 
Administration. All contract of SMS members in Premier support were terminated on the 30 June 2018. There was re 
appointment of SMS members in Premier support. 

 
Notes 
!
• The reporting date in the heading of this table should be aligned with that of Table 3.7.1. 
 
Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance 
agreements as on 31 March 2019 

Reasons  
Disciplinary steps was not taken against SMS members in Premier support as it was not their fault for non-compliance, it 
was external factors that were beyond their control. 
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Notes 
!
• The reporting date in the heading of this table should be aligned with that of Table 3.7.1. 
#

3.7. Performance Rewards 

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during 
the year under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and 
critical occupations (see definition in notes below). 
 
Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 
March 2019 

Beneficiary Profile Cost  
Race and Gender Number of 

beneficiaries 
Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within 
group 

Cost (R’000) Average 
cost per 

employee 

African      
  Male 26 331 8 R 656 096,70 R 25 234,50 

  Female 34 408 8 R 666 645,81 R 19 607,20 

Indian      

  Male  0 2 0   R 0,00 

  Female 1 2 50 R 78 913,38 R 78 913,40 

Coloured      

  Male 0  5 0   R 0,00 

  Female  0 8 0   R 0,00 

White      
  Male  0 5 0   R 0,00 

  Female  2 4 50 R 54 501,99 R 27 251,00 

Total 63 765 8 R 1 456 157,88 R 23 113,60 

EMPLOYEES WITH 
DISABILITY 

 
1 16 6 R 7 643,10 R 7 643,10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



& & & &
& & & & &

& & & &
!
!

!
!

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service 
for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Beneficiary Profile Cost  
Salary 
band 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within salary 

bands 

Total Cost 
(R’000) 

Average cost 
per employee 

Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure 

Lower 
Skilled 
(Levels 1-2) 

1 27 4 R 7 327,68 R 7 327,70 0 

Skilled 
(level 3-5) 12 117 10 

R 114 
428,49 R 9 535,70 0 

Highly 
skilled 
production 
(level 6-8) 

24 380 6 
R 405 

860,28 R 16 910,80 0 

Highly 
skilled 
supervision 
(level 9-12) 

24 141 17 
R 829 

555,35 R 34 564,80 0 

Contract 
(Levels 1-
12) 

1 48 2 R 20 072,70 R 20 072,70 0 

Total 
62 713 9 

R 1 377 
244,50 

R 22 213,60 0 

#

Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019!

Beneficiary Profile Cost  
Critical occupation Number of 

beneficiaries 
Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within 

occupation 

Total Cost (R’000) Average cost 
per employee 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
RELATED                             21 344 6 R 573 295,02 R 27 299,80 

ADVOCATES                                           0 3 0  0 R 0,00 

CLEANERS IN 
OFFICES 
WORKSHOPS 
HOSPITALS ETC.       1 39 3 R 7 327,68 R 7 327,70 

COMMUNICATION 
AND INFORMATION 
RELATED              1 5 20 R 43 245,15 R 43 245,20 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
WORKERS                       0 26 0  0 R 0,00 

COMPUTER 
PROGRAMMERS.                               0 3 0  0 R 0,00 

ENGINEERING 
SCIENCES RELATED                        0 2 0  0 R 0,00 
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Beneficiary Profile Cost  
Critical occupation Number of 

beneficiaries 
Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within 

occupation 

Total Cost (R’000) Average cost 
per employee 

FINANCE AND 
ECONOMICS 
RELATED                      1 4 25 R 50 330,28 R 50 330,30 

FINANCIAL AND 
RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS                1 4 25 R 21 113,40 R 21 113,40 

FINANCIAL CLERKS 
AND CREDIT 
CONTROLLERS            2 6 33 R 39 568,95 R 19 784,50 

HEAD OF 
DEPARTMENT/CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER          0 1 0  0 R 0,00 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
& ORGANISAT 
DEVELOPM & 
RELATE PROF 2 14 14 R 32 153,01 R 16 076,50 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
CLERKS                             3 9 33 R 50 462,01 R 16 820,70 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
RELATED                            5 9 56 R 148 279,35 R 29 655,90 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
RELATED                     1 6 17 R 41 520,90 R 41 520,90 

LANGUAGE 
PRACTITIONERS 
INTERPRETERS & 
OTHER COMMUN  0 2 0  0 R 0,00 

LIBRARIANS AND 
RELATED 
PROFESSIONALS                0 1 0  0 R 0,00 

LIBRARY MAIL AND 
RELATED CLERKS                    1 5 20 R 11 356,59 R 11 356,60 

MESSENGERS 
PORTERS AND 
DELIVERERS                   0 10 0  0 R 0,00 

MOTOR VEHICLE 
DRIVERS                               0 2 0 0  R 0,00 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRAT & 
RELATED CLERKS 
AND ORGANISERS  3 91 3 R 28 840,77 R 9 613,60 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
POLICY AND 
RELATED OFFICERS   3 40 8 R 48 820,08 R 16 273,40 
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Beneficiary Profile Cost  
Critical occupation Number of 

beneficiaries 
Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within 

occupation 

Total Cost (R’000) Average cost 
per employee 

OTHER 
INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
PERSONNEL.            9 57 16 R 195 377,19 R 21 708,60 

OTHER 
OCCUPATIONS                                  0  1 0 

0 
R 0,00 

PHOTOGRAPHIC 
LITHOGRAPHIC AND 
RELATED WORKERS       0 1 0 

0 
R 0,00 

PROFESSIONAL 
NURSE                                 1 1 100 R 18 058,95 R 18 059,00 

SECRETARIES & 
OTHER KEYBOARD 
OPERATING CLERKS      6 33 18 R 58 179,42 R 9 696,60 

SECURITY OFFICERS                                  1 4 25 R 9 315,75 R 9 315,80 

SENIOR MANAGERS                                    1 42 2 R 78 913,38 R 78 913,40 

Total 63 765 8 R 1 456 157,88 R 23 113,60 

!

Notes 
!

• The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table. 
 
• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation –  

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or 
anticipated in the future, either because such skilled persons are not available or they 
are available but do not meet the applicable employment criteria; 

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science 
or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by a prolonged course or study 
and/or specialised instruction; 

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion 
and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and 

(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or 
retain the services of employees;   
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Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management 
Service for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 

Beneficiary Profile Cost  
Salary 
band 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within salary 

bands 

Total Cost 
(R’000) 

Average cost 
per employee 

Total cost as a 
% of the total 
personnel 
expenditure 

Band A  0 30 0  0 R 0,00 0 

Band B 1 10 10 R 78 913,38 R 78 913,40 0 

Band C  0 3 0  0 R 0,00 0 

Band D  0 1 0  0 R 0,00 0 

Contract 
(Levels 13-
16) 

 
 0 8 0  0 R 0,00 0 

Total 1 52 2 R 78 913,38 R 78 913,40 0 

!

3.9 Foreign Workers 

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band 
and major occupation.  

 
Table 3.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019!

01 April 2018 31 March 2019 Change Salary band 

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change 

Lower skilled 
(Lev. 1-2 

0  0 0  0 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 
3-5)  

 
1 50 1 100 0 0 

Highly skilled 
production 
(Lev. 6-8) 

 0 0  0 0 0 0 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Lev. 9-12) 

 0 0  0 0 0 0 

Senior 
Management 
(Level 13-16) 

 
 0 0  0 0 0 0 

Contract 
(Levels 1-2) 1 50  0 0 -1 100 

Contract 
(Levels 3-5)  0 0  0 0 0 0 

Contract   0 0  0 0 0 0 
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01 April 2018 31 March 2019 Change Salary band 

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change 

(level 6-8) 
Contract 
(Levels 9-12) 

 0 0  0 0 0 0 

Periodical 
Remuneration  0 0  0 0 0 0 

Abnormal 
Appointment  0 0  0 0 0 0 

Total 2 100 1 100 -1 100 

!

Table 3.9.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
!

01 April 2018 31 March 2019 Change Major 
occupation Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change 

MESSENGERS 
PORTERS AND 
DELIVERERS                  1 50 1 100 0 0 

OTHER 
ADMINISTRAT 
& RELATED 
CLERKS AND 
ORGANISERS  1 50  0 0 -1 100 

Grand Total 

 
2 100 1 100 -1 100 

 

3.10  Leave utilisation  

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the 
public service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. 
In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided. 

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 
Salary band Total 

days 
% Days 

with 
Medical 

certification 

Number of 
Employees 
using sick 

leave 

% of total 
employees 
using sick 

leave 

Average 
days per 
employee 

Estimated Cost 
(R’000) 

Lower Skills (Level 1-2) 271 78 51 13 5 R 126 461,05 

Skilled (levels 3-5) 726 77 82 21 9 R 603 108,32 

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 

913 86 120 30 8 R 1 212 992,74 

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9 -12) 

832 77 115 29 7 R 2 074 210,52 

Top and Senior 
management (levels 13-16) 

230 85 30 8 8 R 939 540,56 

Total 2972 81 398 100 7 R 4 956 313,19 
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Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 
December 2018 

Salary band Total 
days 

% Days 
with 

Medical 
certification 

Number of 
Employees 

using 
disability 

leave 

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave 

Average 
days per 
employee 

Estimated Cost 
(R’000) 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 12 100 2 9 6 R 5 280,24 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 158 100 8 36 20 R 135 097,60 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 302 100 7 32 43 R 363 459,34 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 32 100 4 18 8 R 65 264,60 

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 8 100 1 5 8 R 30 840,32 

Total 512 100 22 100 23 R 599 942,10 

!

Table 3.10.3 Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 

Salary band Total days taken Number of Employees 
using annual leave 

Average per 
employee 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1147 110 10 

Skilled Levels 3-5) 2895 124 23 

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8) 7149 392 18 

Highly skilled 
supervision(Levels 9-12) 4003,49 157 25 

Senior management (Levels 13-
16) 1197 55 22 

Total 16391,49 838 20 

 
Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 

Salary band Total days of 
capped leave 

taken 

Number of 
Employees using 

capped leave 

Average number 
of days taken per 

employee 

Average capped 
leave per 

employee as on 
31 March 20ZZ 

Lower skilled (Levels 
1-2)  0 0  0 0 

Skilled Levels 3-5) 28 3 9 10 

Highly skilled 
production (Levels 6-
8)  0  0 0 6 

Highly skilled 
supervision(Levels 9-
12) 2,51 1 3 11 

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 3 2 2 14 

Total 33,51 6 6 8 

!

!
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The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken. 
 
Table 3.10.5 Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Reason Total amount 
(R’000) 

Number of 
employees 

Average per 
employee 

(R’000) 

Leave payout for 2018/19 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle 

R 0,00 0 R 0,00 

Capped leave payouts on termination of service 
for 2018/19  

R 0,00 0 R 0,00 

Current leave payout on termination of service for 
2018/19 

R 1 176 091,62 63 R 18 668,00 

Total R 1 176 091,62 63 R 18 668,00 

!
3.11 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes 

!
Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure 
!"#$%&'($)*+,#)%- +.- )/01+2))%- #3)"$#.#)3- $+- 4)- ($- 5#*5-
,#%6-+.-'+"$,('$#"*-789-:-,)1($)3-3#%)(%)%-;#.-("2<--

=)2-%$)0%-$(6)"-$+-,)3>')-$5)-,#%6--

?@- A)*>1(,-(B(,)")%%-%)%%#+"%-(,)-5)13!
?@- A)*>1(,-789-%',))"#"*-("3-$)%$#"*-#%-5)13!
-
Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and 
provide the required information) 
 
 
4 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes 

!
Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure 
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Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and 
provide the required information) 
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5 Labour Relations 

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Subject matter Date 

SALARY ADJUSTMENTS  18 APRIL 2018 

  

!
Notes 

• If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following: 

Total number of Collective agreements None 

!
The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the 
department for the year under review. 
 
Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 
2019 

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total 

Correctional counselling! 0! 0% 

Verbal warning 1/13 * 100 7,7% 

Written warning 4/13 * 100 30,7% 

Final written warning 5/13 * 100 38,5% 

Suspended without pay! 1/13 * 100 ! 7,7% 

Fine! 0! 0% 

Demotion! 0! 0% 

Dismissal! 1/13 * 100 ! 7.7% 

Not guilty 0 0% 

Case withdrawn 1/13 * 100 7,7% 

Total 13 100% 

 
Notes 
 

• If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following: 

Total number of Disciplinary hearings finalised None 

!
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Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2018 and 
31 March 2019 
 Type of misconduct  Number % of total 

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE  2/23 * 100 8,7% 

DERELICTION OF DUTIES  8/23 * 100 35% 
GROSS NEGLIGENCE  8/23 * 100 35% 

ABSENTEEISM 1/23 * 100  4,3% 

THREATENING ANOTHER EMPLOEYEE WHILE ON DUTY 1/23 * 100 4,3% 
CONTRAVENTION OF PFMA 2/23 * 100  8.7% 

FAILURE TO REPORT LAPTOPS  1/23 * 100 4,3% 

Total 23 100% 

!

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Grievances Number % of Total 

Number of grievances resolved 8/17 * 100 47% 
Number of grievances not resolved 9/17 * 100 53% 

Total number of grievances lodged 17 100% 

 
 
Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Disputes Number % of Total 

Number of disputes upheld 3/5 * 100 60% 

Number of disputes dismissed 2/5 * 100 40% 

Total number of disputes lodged 5 100% 

!

Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019!  
Total number of persons working days lost                                                                                       CL!F()*7(!
Total costs working days lost                                                                                                                                            CL!9#@/!
Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000) J[8!KKKBdS!
!

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
T-&:(+!)0!*()*7(!/-/*(.2(2! K!
T-&:(+!)0!*()*7(!54)X/!/-/*(./%).!($3((2(2!VL!2#@/! K!
=E(+#1(!.-&:(+!)0!2#@/!/-/*(.2(2! bL!9#@/!
Cost of suspension(R’000) R679,547.44 

!
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6 Skills development 

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.  
 
Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

Training needs identified at start of the reporting 
period 

Occupational category Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 

2018 
Internships Skills 

Programmes 
& other 
short 

courses 

Other 
forms of 
training 

Total 

Female 1155 00 2244 66 3300 Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 

Male 3377 00 2211 55 2266 

Female 6677 00 2277 66 3333 Professionals 

Male 7799 00 3399 66 4455 

Female 4499 00 113344 88 114422 Technicians and associate 
professionals 

Male 
 

5533 00 110011 66 110077 

Female 223344 00 5577 00 5577 Clerks  

Male 114422 00 5511 00 5511 

Female 00 00 00 00 00 Service and sales workers 

Male 00 00 00 00 00 

Female 00 00 00 00 00 Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

Male 00 00 00 00 00 

Female 00 00 00 00 00 Craft and related trades 
workers 

Male 00 00 00 00 00 

Female 00 00 00 00 00 Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers 

Male 00 00 00 00 00 

Female 5566 5577 6666 00 112233 Elementary occupations 

Male 3333 6633 4455 00 110088 

Female 442211 5577 330088 2200 338855 Sub Total 

Male 334444 6633 225577 1177 333377 

Total  776655 112200 556655 3377 772222 
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Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Training provided within the reporting period Occupational 

category 
Gender Number of 

employees 
as at 1 April 

2018 

Learnerships Skills 
Programmes 

& other 
short 

courses 

Other 
forms of 
training 

Total 

Female 15 0 12 0 12 Legislators, senior 
officials and managers 

Male 
 

37 0 10 1 11 

Female 67 0 119 2 121 Professionals 

Male 79 0 76 3 79 

Female 49 0 97 6 
 

103 Technicians and 
associate 
professionals Male 

 
53 0 43 4 47 

Female 234 0 169 0 169 Clerks  

Male 
 

142 0 83 0 83 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 Service and sales 
workers 

Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 Craft and related 
trades workers 

Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Female 56 19 31 0 50 Elementary 
occupations 

Male 33 21 10 0 31 

Female 421 19 428 8 455 Sub Total 

Male 344 21 222 8 251 

Total  776655 40 117 24 706 
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7 Injury on duty 
 

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 
Nature of injury on duty Number % of total 

Required basic medical attention only 16 2.3% 

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0% 
Permanent Disablement 0 0% 

Fatal 0 0% 

Total 16 2.3% 

 

8.  Utilisation of Consultants 

The following tables relates information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of the 
Public Service Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which 
provides in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services to a 
department against remuneration received from any source: 
 

(a) The rendering of expert advice; 
(b) The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and 
(c) The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an 

employee of a department. 
 
Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 20YY 
and 31 March 20ZZ 

Project title Total number of consultants 
that worked on project 

Duration 
(work days) 

Contract value in 
Rand 

Not Applicable    

!

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total 
duration 

Work days 

Total contract value in 
Rand 

Not Applicable- - - -
-

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically 
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 20YY and 31 March 20ZZ 

Project title Percentage ownership by 
HDI groups 

Percentage management 
by HDI groups 

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project 

Not Applicable    

 
 
Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 20YY and 31 
March 20ZZ 

Project title Total Number of 
consultants that worked on 

project 

Duration 
(Work days) 

Donor and contract value in 
Rand 

Not Applicable    

!
Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total 

duration 
Work days 

Total contract value in Rand 

Not Applicable    
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Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically 
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 20YY and 31 March 20ZZ 

Project title Percentage ownership by 
HDI groups 

Percentage management 
by HDI groups 

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project 

Not Applicable    

!

9. Severance Packages 

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2018 and 31 
March 2019 

Salary band Number of 
applications 

received 

Number of 
applications 

referred to the 
MPSA 

Number of 
applications 
supported by 

MPSA 

Number of 
packages 

approved by 
department 

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1-2) 

0 0 0 0 

Skilled Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 

Highly skilled 
production (Levels 
6-8) 

0 0 0 0 

Highly skilled 
supervision(Levels 
9-12) 

0 0 0 0 

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 

0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 

!

 
!

 
!

!

!

!
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Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial legislature on 
vote no. 1: Office of the Premier 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Qualified opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Office of the Premier set out on pages 120 to 
19 , which comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at     
31 March 2019, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net 
assets, and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

2. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified 
opinion section of this auditor’s report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Office of the Premier as at 31 March 2019, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Modified 
Cash Standard (MCS) prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 

Basis for qualified opinion 

Transfers and subsidies 

3. The department incorrectly classified payments made to an implementing agent in the 
previous year as transfers and subsidies instead of goods and services or expenditure for 
capital assets. As a result transfers and subsidies was overstated and goods and services or 
expenditure for capital assets was understated by R55 000 000. In addition, the management 
fee paid to the agent of R5 500 000 as well as details relating to the principal-agent 
arrangement was not appropriately disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements as required 
by chapter 16 of the MCS. 

Goods and services 

4. I was unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence that goods or services were 
received for payments made in the previous year to contractors of R12 229 263 included in 
goods and services and for payments to an implementing agent of R55 000 000 included in 
transfers and subsidies. This was due to the information and explanations I considered 
necessary that could not be provided by management. I was unable to confirm the receipt of 
goods or services by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine if any 
adjustments were necessary to transfers and subsidies or goods and services of 
R181 743 000 or R253 403 000 respectively relating to the previous year as disclosed in the 
statement of financial performance. 
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Irregular expenditure 

5. The framework on irregular expenditure issued with Instruction Note 1 of 2018-19 requires that 
irregular expenditure not confirmed or in the process of determination or investigation must be 
disclosed in the sub-note to the financial statements related to irregular expenditure. The 
department made payments of R49 500 000 to an implementing agent in the previous year 
where the payment was still in the process of determination or investigation relating to the 
department’s responsibility in the procurement process. As these payments were not included 
in the amount disclosed in note 31.6 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure under 
determination or investigation was understated by R49 500 000.  

Context for the opinion 

6. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.  

7. I am independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional 
accountants (IESBA code), parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 
Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South 
Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the IESBA codes.  

8. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my qualified opinion. 

Emphasis of matter 

9. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

10. As disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R16 811 000 was 
incurred in the current year and irregular expenditure of R729 450 000 from prior years had 
not yet been resolved. 

11. As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of 
R672 000 was incurred in the current year and fruitless and wasteful expenditure of 
R5 804 000 from prior years had not yet been resolved. 

Restatement of corresponding figures  

12. !"#$%"&'(")$#%*#*(+)#,,#+(#+-)#.%*/*&%/'#"+/+)0)*+"1#+-)#&(22)"3(*$%*4#.%452)"#.(2#67#8/2&-#9:7;#
<)2)#2)"+/+)$#/"#/#2)"5'+#(.#/*#)22(2#%*#+-)#.%*/*&%/'#"+/+)0)*+"#(.#+-)#$)3/2+0)*+#/+1#/*$#.(2#+-)#
=)/2#)*$)$1#67#8/2&-#9:7>? 

Underspending of the vote 

13. As disclosed in the notes to the appropriation statement, the department materially underspent 
the budget by R87 395 000 on Programme 2: Institutional development. 

Other matter 

14. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Unaudited supplementary schedules 

15. The supplementary information set out on pages 19  to 20  does not form part of the financial 
statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules 
and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon. 

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements 

16. The accounting officer, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with the MCS prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements 
of the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

17. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the 
Office of the Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease 
operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

18. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

19. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included 
in the annexure to this auditor’s report. 

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope 

20. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and 
the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on 
the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected 
programme presented in the annual performance report. I was engaged to perform procedures 
to raise findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

21. I was engaged to evaluate the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 31 March 
2019: 

Programmes Pages in the annual 
performance report 

Programme 2 – Institutional development support 27 – 35 

22. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected programme are 
as follows: 
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Programme 2 – Institutional development support 

Indicator: Quarterly monitoring of the provincial legislative programme 

23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 11. 
This was due a lack of underlying information to support the reported information or due to the 
underlying information not being sufficiently complete and accurate for audit purposes. In 
addition, the source information for achieving the planned indicator was not clearly defined and 
the planned target for this indicator was not specific in clearly identifying the nature or required 
level of performance.  I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was required to the reported 
achievement of 11 in the annual performance report.  

Various indicators 

24. The reported achievement in the annual performance report did not agree to the supporting 
evidence provided for the indicators listed below. The supporting evidence provided indicated 
that the achievements of these indicators were as follows: 

Indicator description Reported 
achievement 

Audited 
value 

Number of local municipalities provided with shared ICT services 3 2 

Number of citizen- centred newspapers produced 15 8 

Various indicators 

25. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievements of 
the following indicators. This was due a lack of underlying information to support the reported 
information or due to the underlying information not being sufficiently complete and accurate 
for audit purposes. I was unable to confirm the reported achievements by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the 
reported achievements for these indicators as reported in the annual performance report: 

Indicator description Reported 
achievement 

Number of NWPG sites with improved network performance 4 

Number of government events promoted 26 

Percentage of forensic investigations managed 100% 

Number of interventions implemented towards achieving the national anti-corruption 
strategy 

12 

Number of minimum security standards coordinated 12 

Various indicators 

26. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievements of 
the indicators listed below. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. In 
addition, the planned targets for these indicators, were not specific in clearly identifying the 
nature or required level of performance. I was unable to confirm the reported achievements by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were 
required to the reported achievements of these indicators in the annual performance report: 

Indicator description Planned 
target 

Reported 
achievement 

Number of provincial learning and development programmes facilitated 8 8 

Percentage reduction of provincial spend on litigation monitored as at 
the beginning of the financial year 

12% 0% 
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Various indicators 

27. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievements of 
the indicators listed below. This was due a lack of underlying information to support the 
reported information or due to the underlying information not being sufficiently complete and 
accurate for audit purposes. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by alternative 
means. In addition, the planned targets for these indicators, were not specific in clearly 
identifying the nature or required level of performance. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements of these 
indicators in the annual performance report: 

Indicator description Planned 
target 

Reported 
achievement 

Number of organisational development interventions provided to 
departments 

2 2 

Number of human resource practices interventions provided to 
departments 

2 2 

Number of communication initiatives coordinated to promote Bokone 
Bophirima corporate brand 

20 20 

Other matter 

28. I draw attention to the matter below.  

Achievement of planned targets  

29. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 20 to 42 for information on the achievement 
of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under/ over achievement of a 
significant number of targets. This information should be considered in the context of the 
material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 
paragraphs 23 to 27 of this report. 

Report on audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

30. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the department with specific 
matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance.  

31. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows: 

Annual financial statements 

32. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the 
prescribed financial reporting framework and, as required by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the 
PFMA.  Material misstatements of disclosure items, identified by the auditors in the submitted 
financial statements were corrected, but the uncorrected material misstatements and 
supporting records that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a 
qualified opinion. 

Expenditure management 

33. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to 
R16 811 000, as disclosed in note 31 to the annual financial statements, as required by 
section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the irregular 
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expenditure disclosed in the financial statements was caused by deviations from competitive 
bidding in contravention with Treasury Regulation 16A6.4. 

34. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R672 000 as 
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA 
and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure was 
caused by interest charges on overdue accounts. 

Consequence management 

35. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were taken 
against officials who had incurred irregular expenditure as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of 
the PFMA. This was due to the fact that some instances of irregular expenditure not having 
been investigated. 

36. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that investigations were conducted 
into all allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 4.1.1. 

Strategic planning and performance management 

37. The specific information systems that were established by the department were inadequate to 
enable the monitoring of progress made towards achieving targets, core objectives and 
service delivery as required by Public Service Regulation 25(1)(e)(i) and (iii). 

Other information 

38. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not 
include the financial statements, the auditor’s report thereon and those selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in this 
auditor’s report.  

39. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information 
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

40. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

41. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement in this 
other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Internal control deficiencies 

42. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective 
was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to 
the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified opinion, the 
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation 
included in this report. 

• Leadership did not adequately exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and 
performance reporting and compliance with legislation. The department did not have 
sufficient monitoring and reviewing controls to ensure that financial and performance 
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reports submitted for audit were accurate and complete and that action plans developed 
were adequately and timeously implemented.  

• Management did not adequately monitor the outputs of risk management activities, to 
ensure the prior year qualification areas and control deficiencies are addressed. 
Furthermore, there was a lack of a proper records management system that could support 
the information reported in the annual performance report and as a result material errors 
and omissions were identified during the audit process. 

• The effectiveness of the audit committee and internal audit’s role as an assurance provider 
was compromised by management’s inability to adequately address and react to internal 
audit’s findings and recommendations. 

Other reports 

43. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could 
have, an impact on the matters reported in the department’s financial statements, reported 
performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. 
These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the 
reported performance information or compliance with legislation. 

Investigation 

44. The Directorate of Priority Crime Investigation (DPCI) was investigating a case of alleged 
corruption and fraud relating to a specific contract which was awarded in the 2016-17 financial 
year. The investigation was still in progress at the date of this report. 
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the 
audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the 
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected programmes and on 
the department’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters. 

Financial statements 

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the 
auditor’s report, I also:  

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the department’s internal control. 

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer. 

conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Office of the Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are 
based on the information available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause a department to cease to continue as a going concern.  

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

Communication with those charged with governance 

3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit.  

4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
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Summary of significant accounting policies  

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been 
applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that 
the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.   

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has used 
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best 
information available at the time of preparation. 

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness 
of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations 
issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.  

1 Basis of preparation  

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard. 

   

2 Going concern  

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 

3 Presentation currency 

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the 
functional currency of the department.  

 

4 Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand 
(R’000). 

 

5 Foreign currency translation 

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands 
using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt. 

 

6 Comparative information 

6.1 Prior period comparative information  

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial 
statements.  Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been 
reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the 
format of the current year’s financial statements. 

 

6.2 Current year comparison with budget  

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and 
economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.   
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7 Revenue 

7.1 Appropriated funds 

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the 
revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation). 

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the 
appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process 
are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become 
effective. 

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting 
date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.   

 

7.2 Departmental revenue  

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and 
is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise. 

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable 
in the statement of financial position.  

 

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue  

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to 
the financial statements when: 

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the department; and 

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. 

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable 
from collecting agents. 

 

8 Expenditure 

8.1 Compensation of employees 

8.1.1 Salaries and wages 

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment.  

  

8.1.2 Social contributions 

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in 
the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.   

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as 
transfers to households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 
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8.2 Other expenditure 

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital 
assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  The 
expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the 
capitalisation threshold.   

 

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable 

Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the goods 
are received or, in the case of services, when they are rendered to the department or in the case 
of transfers and subsidies when they are due and payable. 

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost. 

 

8.4 Leases 

8.4.1 Operating leases 

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.  

 

8.4.2 Finance leases  

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure 
in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not 
apportioned between the capital and interest portions.   

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the 
lower of: 

• cost, being the fair value of the asset; or 
• the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire 

ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest. 
 

9 Aid Assistance 

9.1 Aid assistance received 

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when 
received.  In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of 
receipt and is measured at fair value. 

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance 
that are required to be refunded to the donor  are recognised as a payable in the statement of 
financial position. 
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9.2 Aid assistance paid 

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment. Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a 
receivable in the statement of financial position. 

 

10 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.   

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a 
current liability. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, 
deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts. 

 

11 Prepayments and advance 

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the 
department receives or disburses the cash.   

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost. 

<Indicate when prepayments are expensed and under what circumstances.> 

 

12 Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued 
interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are 
made according to the department’s write-off policy. 

 

13 Investments 

Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost. 

 

14 Financial assets 

14.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere) 

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial. 

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts 
already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at 
cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. 

14.2 Impairment of financial assets 

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in 
the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic 
benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements. 
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15 Payables 

Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost. 

 

16 Capital Assets 

16.1 Immovable capital assets 

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  
Immovable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value 
as at the date of acquisition.   

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the immovable capital 
assets are measured at R1 unless the fair value of the asset has been reliably estimated, in 
which case the fair value is used.   

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1. 

Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
impairment. 

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of 
the capital project unless the immovable asset is recorded by another department in which case 
the completed project costs are transferred to that department.   

 

16.2 Movable capital assets 

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  
Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as 
at the date of acquisition.   

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital 
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets 
are measured at R1.   

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1. 

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
impairment. 

Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value. [Add this sentence on biological assets if 
the department has elected to revalue its biological assets at reporting date] 

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of 
the capital project unless the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity in which 
case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.   

 

16.3 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Intangible 
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.   

 

ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIAL YEAR 2018/19 • OFFICE OF THE PREMIER • VOTE 01 • NORTH wEST PROVINCE

Accounting Policies

for the year ended 31 March 2019

124
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



    
 

  
       

!
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 
the department commences the development phase of the project.   

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets 
are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are 
measured at R1.   

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1. 

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
impairment. 

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of 
the capital project unless the intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in which 
case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.   

17 Provisions and Contingents 

17.1 Provisions 

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or 
constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The 
provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at 
the reporting date. 

 

17.2 Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible 
obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the 
department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably. 

 

17.3 Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset 
arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department. 

 

17.4 Commitments  

Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is a 
contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid 
expectation that the department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future 
expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash. 
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18 Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as 
the expenditure is either: 

• approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds 
are received; or 

• approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off 
against the appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or 

• transferred to receivables for recovery. 

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure. 

 

19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 
confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful 
expenditure incurred.   

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it 
is resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be 
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable. 

 

20 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The 
amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is 
impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.   

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant 
authority, transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.    

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable 
and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable. 

 

21 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors 

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied 
retrospectively in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable 
to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy.  In such 
instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets 
for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable. 

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS 
requirements. 

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in 
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the 
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the department shall 
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which 
retrospective restatement is practicable. 

 

ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIAL YEAR 2018/19 • OFFICE OF THE PREMIER • VOTE 01 • NORTH wEST PROVINCE

Accounting Policies

for the year ended 31 March 2019

126
OFFICE OF THE PREMIER ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



    
 

  
       

!

22 Events after the reporting date 

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in 
the financial statements.  The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting 
events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.   

 

23 Principal-Agent arrangements 

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here].  In terms of 
the arrangement the department is the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include details 
here].  All related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded 
in terms of the relevant policies listed herein.  Additional disclosures have been provided in the 
notes to the financial statements where appropriate.   

 

24 Departures from the MCS requirements 

There were no departures from the Modified Cash Standard requirements, the financial 
statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information and the 
department complied with the Modified Cash Standard.  

 

25 Capitalisation reserve 

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior 
reporting period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in 
the current reporting period.  Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when 
identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when 
the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received. 

 

26 Recoverable revenue 

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial 
year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are either 
transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the 
statement of financial performance when written-off. 

 

27 Related party transactions 

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the 
reporting entity and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister’s portfolio are 
recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.  

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the department. The number of individuals and 
their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 
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28 Inventories  (Effective from 1 April 2017) 

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recorded at cost price in the notes to the financial 
statements 

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the cost of inventory is its 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or the lower 
of cost and current replacement value. 

 

29 Public-Private Partnerships 

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the 
partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. 

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the 
date of commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees 
received, the unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the department are recorded in the notes 
to the financial statements. 

 

30 Accruals and Payables not Recognised 

A summary of accruals and payables not recognised (other than those relating to employee 
benefits) is disclosed per economic classification. A presentation of a summarised aging of those 
accruals and payables not recognised differentiating between 30 day accruals and payables not 
recognised and those that are more than 30 days old is disclosed.  
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